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Commonly Used Abbreviations

The following industry-specific, accountingand otherterms,and abbreviations may be commonly used in this

report.

Currencies
$or USD
CAD

EUR

GBP

Units of Measurement
BBL
BCF
BOE
MBD
MCF
MBOD
MM
MMBOE
MMBOD
MBOED

MMBTU
MMCFD

Industry
CBM
E&P
FEED
FPS
FPSO

JOA
LNG
NGLs
OPEC

PSC
PUDs
SAGD
WCS
WTI

U.S. dollar
Canadiandollar
Euro

British pound

barrel

billion cubic feet

barrels of oil equivalent
thousands of barrels per day
thousand cubic feet

thousand barrels of oil per day
million

million barrels of oil equivalent
million barrels of oil per day
thousands of barrels of oil
equivalent perday

million British thermalunits
million cubic feet per day

coalbed methane

exploration and production
front-end engineering and design
floating production system
floating production, storage and
offloading

joint operatingagreement
liquefied naturalgas
naturalgas liquids

Organization of Petroleum
Exporting Countries
production sharing contract
proved undeveloped reserves
steam-assisted gravity drainage
Western Canada Select

West Texas Intermediate

Accounting
ARO

ASC

ASU
DD&A

FASB

FIFO
G&A
GAAP

LIFO
NPNS
PP&E
SAB
VIE

Miscellaneous
EPA
ESG

EU
FERC

GHG
HSE
ICC

ICSID

IRS
OoTC
NYSE
SEC

TSR
UK.
us.

asset retirement obligation
accountingstandards codification
accountingstandardsupdate
depreciation, depletionand
amortization

Financial Accounting Standards
Board

first-in, first-out

general and administrative
generally accepted accounting
principles

last-in, first-out

normalpurchase normalsale
properties, plantsand equipment
staff accounting bulletin
variable interest entity

Environmental Protection Agency
Environmental, Social and
Corporate Governance
European Union

Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission

greenhouse gas

health, safety andenvironment
International Chamber of
Commerce

World Bank’s International
Centre for Settlement of
Investment Disputes

Internal Revenue Service
over-the-counter

New York Stock Exchange
U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission
totalshareholder return
United Kingdom

United States of America



PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Income Statement

ConocoPhillips

Millions of Dollars

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues and Other Income
Salesand other operating revenues $ 4,386 7,756 13,293 24,859
Equity in earnings of affiliates 35 290 346 651
Gain (loss) on dispositions (3) 1,785 551 1,884
Otherincome (loss) (38) 262 (983) 1,136

TotalRevenuesand Other Income 4,380 10,093 13,207 28,530
Costsand Expenses
Purchased commodities 1,839 2,710 5,630 9,059
Productionand operating expenses 963 1,331 3,183 4,020
Selling, generaland administrative expenses 96 87 249 369
Explorationexpenses 125 360 410 592
Depreciation, depletionand amortization 1,411 1,566 3,980 4,602
Impairments 2 24 521 26
Taxesotherthanincometaxes 179 237 570 706
Accretion on discounted liabilities 62 86 195 259
Interest and debtexpense 200 184 604 582
Foreign currency transaction (gain) loss (5) (21) (88) 19
Otherexpenses 20 36 7 58

Total Costsand Expenses 4,892 6,600 15,261 20,292
Income (loss) before incometaxes (512) 3,493 (2,054) 8,238
Income tax provision (benefit) (62) 422 (171) 1,724
Netincome (loss) (450) 3,071 (1,883) 6,514
Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests - (15) (46) (45)
Net Income (L oss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips $ (450) 3,056 (1,929) 6,469
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips Per Share

of Common Stock (dollars)

Basic $ 0.42) 2.76 (1.79) 5.75
Diluted (0.42) 2.74 (1.79) 5.72
Average Common Shares Outstanding (in thousands)
Basic 1,077,377 1,108,555 1,079,525 1,124,558
Diluted 1,077,377 1,113,250 1,079,525 1,131,034

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ConocoPhillips

Millions of Dollars

Three MonthsEnded Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019
Net Income (L0ss) $ (450) 3,071 (1,883) 6,514
Other comprehensiveincome (loss)
Defined benefit plans
Reclassification adjustment foramortization of prior
service creditincluded in net income (loss) 8) 8 (24) (26)
Net actuarial lossarisingduring the period (78) (149) (73) (149)
Reclassification adjustment foramortization of net actuarial
losses included in net income (loss) 45 56 81 114
Nonsponsored plans - @ - (D)
Income taxes on defined benefit plans 10 30 3 20
Defined benefit plans, netof tax (31) (72) (13) (42)
Unrealized holdinggain on securities - - 3 -
Income taxes on unrealized holding gain on securities - - 1 -
Unrealized holdinggain on securities, netof tax - - 2 -
Foreign currency translation adjustments 188 247 (302) 493
Income taxes on foreign currency translationadjustments 2 2) 4 2
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax 190 245 (298) 491
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Netof Tax 159 173 (309) 449
Comprehensive Income (L 0ss) (291) 3,244 (2,192) 6,963
Less: comprehensiveincomeattributable to noncontrolling interests - (15) (46) (45)
Comprehensive Income (Loss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips $  (291) 3,229  (2,238) 6,918

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Balance Sheet

ConocoPhillips

Millions of Dollars

September 30 December 31

2020 2019
Assets
Cashandcash equivalents $ 2,490 5,088
Short-term investments 4,032 3,028
Accountsand notes receivable (net of allowance of $4 and $13, respectively) 1,984 3,267
Accountsand notes receivable—related parties 135 134
Investment in Cenovus Energy 809 2,111
Inventories 1,034 1,026
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 575 2,259
Total Current Assets 11,059 16,913
Investments and long-term receivables 8,295 8,687
Loansand advances—related parties 114 219
Net properties, plantsand equipment
(net of accumulated DD&A of $58,726 and $55,477, respectively) 41,269 42,269
Otherassets 2,420 2,426
Total Assets $ 63,157 70,514
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 2,217 3,176
Accounts payable—related parties 22 24
Short-term debt 482 105
Accrued incomeand other taxes 339 1,030
Employee benefit obligations 469 663
Otheraccruals 1,111 2,045
Total Current Liabilities 4,640 7,043
Long-term debt 14,905 14,790
Asset retirementobligations and accrued environmental costs 5,651 5,352
Deferred incometaxes 3,854 4,634
Employee benefit obligations 1,661 1,781
Other liabilities and deferred credits 1,663 1,864
Total Liabilities 32,374 35,464
Equity
Common stock (2,500,000,000 shares authorized at $0.01 par value)
Issued (2020—1,798,738,512 shares; 2019—1,795,652,203 shares)
Parvalue 18 18
Capitalin excess of par 47,113 46,983
Treasury stock (atcost: 2020—725,996,869 shares; 2019—710,783,814 shares) (47,130) (46,405)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,666) (5,357)
Retained earnings 36,448 39,742
Total Common Stockholders’ Equity 30,783 34,981
Noncontrolling interests - 69
Total Equity 30,783 35,050
Total Liabilitiesand Equity $ 63,157 70,514

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ConocoPhillips

Millions of Dollars

Nine Months Ended
September 30
2020 2019
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income (loss) (1,883) 6,514
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 3,980 4,602
Impairments 521 26
Dry hole costsand leasehold impairments 114 361
Accretion on discounted liabilities 195 259
Deferred taxes (428) (304)
Undistributed equity earnings 450 260
Gain on dispositions (551) (1,884)
Unrealized (gain) loss on investmentin Cenovus Energy 1,302 (489)
Other (188) (331)
Working capital adjustments
Decrease in accounts and notes receivable 1,132 333
Increase in inventories (74) 2)
Increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets (49) (29)
Decrease in accounts payable (583) (476)
Decrease in taxes and otheraccruals (808) (718)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3,130 8,122
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Capital expenditures and investments (3,657) (5,041)
Working capital changes associated with investing activities (229) 17
Proceeds from asset dispositions 1,312 2,920
Net purchases of investments (1,089) (665)
Collection of advances/loans—related parties 116 127
Other (31) (146)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (3,578) (2,788)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Issuance of debt 300 -
Repayment of debt (234) (59)
Issuance of company common stock )] (39)
Repurchase of company common stock (726) (2,751)
Dividends paid (1,367) (1,037)
Other (27) (73)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (2,056) (3,959)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash (62) (68)
Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash (2,566) 1,307
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 5,362 6,151
Cash, CashEquivalents and Restricted Cash at End of Period 2,796 7,458

Restricted cash of $91 million and $215 million are included in the "Prepaid expenses and other current assets” and "Other assets" lines,

respectively, of our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2020.

Restricted cash of $90 million and $184 million are included in the "Prepaid expenses and other current assets" and "Other assets" lines,

respectively, of our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2019.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ConocoPhillips

Note 1—Basis of Presentation

The interim-period financialinformation presented in the financial statementsincluded in this report is
unaudited and, in the opinion of management, includesall known accrualsand adjustments necessary fora fair
presentation of the consolidated financial position of ConocoPhillips and its results of operationsand cash
flows for such periods. All suchadjustmentsare of a normaland recurring nature unless otherwise disc losed.
Certain notesand otherinformation have been condensed oromitted from the interim financial statements
included in this report. Therefore, these financialstatementsshould be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financialstatementsand notesincluded in our2019 AnnualReport on Form 10-K.

The unrealized (gain) loss on investmentin Cenovus Energy included on our consolidated statement of cash
flows, previously reflected on the line item “Other” within net cash provided by operatingactivities, hasbeen
reclassified in the comparative period to conform with the current period’s presentation.

Note 2—Changes in Accounting Principles

We adopted the provisionsof FASB ASU No. 2016-13, “Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments,” (ASC Topic 326) and its amendments, beginningJanuary 1,2020. This ASU, asamended, sets
forth the current expected credit loss model, a new forward-looking impairment model for certain financial
instruments measured at amortized cost basis based on expected losses ratherthan incurred losses. This ASU,
asamended, which primarily appliesto ouraccounts receivable, also requires credit losses related to available--
for-sale debt securities to be recorded through an allowance forcredit losses. The adoption of this ASU did
nothavea materialimpactto our financialstatements. The majority of ourreceivablesare due within 30 days
or less. We monitorthe credit quality of our counterparties through review of collections, credit ratings, and
otheranalyses. We develop our estimated allowance for credit losses primarily using anaging method and
analyses of historicalloss ratesaswell asconsideration of currentand future conditions that could impact our
counterparties’ credit quality and liquidity .

Note 3—Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

Millions of Dollars
September 30  December31

2020 2019

Crudeoil and naturalgas $ 503 472
Materialsand supplies 531 554
$ 1,034 1,026

Inventories valued on the LIFO basistotaled $373 million and $286 million at September 30,2020 and
December31, 2019, respectively. Due to a precipitousdecline in commodity prices beginning in March this
year,we recorded a lower of cost or market adjustment in the first quarter of 2020 of $228 million to our crude
oil and naturalgasinventories. The adjustment wasincluded in the “Purchased commodities” line on our
consolidated income statement. Commodity prices have improved since the first quarter.



Note 4—Asset Acquisitions and Dispositions

Asset Acquisition

In August 2020, we completed the acquisition of additional Montney acreage in Canada from Kelt Exploration
Ltd. for$382 million after customary adjustments, plusthe assumption of $31 million in financingobligations
associated with partially owned infrastructure. This acquisition consisted primarily of undeveloped properties
and included 140,000 netacresin the liquids-rich Inga Fireweed asset Montney zone, which is directly
adjacent to ourexisting Montney position. The transaction increases our Montney acreage position to 295,000
netacres with a 100 percent working interest. This agreementwasaccounted forasan assetacquisition
resulting in the recognition of $490 million of PP&E; $77 million of ARO and accrued environmental costs;
and $31 million of financingobligations recorded primarily to long-term debt. Results of operationsforthe
Montney are reported in our Canadasegment.

Assets Sold

In May 2020, we completed the divestiture of our subsidiaries that held our Australia-West assets and
operations, and based on an effective date of January 1,2019, we received proceeds of $765 million with an
additional $200 million due upon finalinvestment decision of the proposed Barossa development project. In
the nine-month period of 2020, we recognized a before-tax gain of $587 million related to this transaction. At
the time of disposition, the net carrying value of the subsidiaries sold was approximately $0.2 billion,
excluding $0.5 billion of cash. The netcarrying value consisted primarily of $1.3 billion of PP&E and $0.1
billion of othercurrent assets offset by $0.7 billion of ARO, $0.3 billion of deferred tax liabilities, and $0.2
billion of otherliabilities. The before-tax earnings associated with the subsidiaries sold, including the gain on
disposition noted above, were $851 million and $222 million forthe nine-month periods ended September 30,
2020and 2019, respectively. Production from the beginning of the yearthrough the disposition date in May
2020 averaged 43 MBOED. Results of operations forthe subsidiaries sold are reported in our Asia Pacific
segment.

In March 2020, we completed the sale of our Niobrara interests for approximately $359 million after
customary adjustments and recognized a before-tax loss on disposition of $38 million. At thetime of
disposition, our interest in Niobrara had a net carrying value of $397 million, consisting primarily of $433
million of PP&E and $34 million of ARO. The before-tax earnings associated with our interests in Niobrara,
including the loss on disposition, were a loss of $22 million and $7 million for the nine-month periods ended
September 30,2020 and 2019, respectively.

In February 2020, we sold our Waddell Ranch interests in the Permian Basin for $184 million after customary
adjustments. No gain or loss wasrecognized on the sale.

Production from the disposed Niobrara and Waddell Ranch interests in our Lower 48 segment averaged 15
MBOED in 2019.

Note 5—Investments, Loansand Long-Term Receivables

Australia Pacific LNG Pty Ltd (APLNG)

APLNG executed project financingagreementsforan $8.5 billion project finance facility in 2012. The $8.5
billion project finance facility was initially composed of financingagreements executed by APLNG with the
Export-Import Bank of the United States forapproximately $2.9 billion, the Export-Import Bank of China for
approximately $2.7 billion, and a syndicate of Australian and international commercialbanks for
approximately $2.9 billion. All amounts were drawn from the facility. APLNG made its first principal and
interest repayment in March 2017 andis scheduled to make bi-annual payments until March 2029.

APLNG madea voluntary repayment of $1.4 billion to the Export-Import Bank of China in September2018.
At the sametime, APLNG obtained a United States Private Placement (USPP) bond facility of $1.4 billion.
APLNG madeitsfirst interest payment related to thisfacility in March 2019,and principalpaymentsare
scheduled to commence in September2023, with bi-annual payments due on the facility until September2030.



During the first quarterof 2019, APLNG refinanced $3.2 billion of existing project finance debt through two
transactions. Asa result of the first transaction, APLNG obtained a commercialbank facility of $2.6 billion.
APLNG madeitsfirst principal and interest repayment in September 2019 with bi-annualpaymentsdue on the
facility until March 2028. Through the second transaction, APLNG obtained a USPP bond facility of $0.6
billion. APLNG made its first interest payment in September2019, and principal paymentsare scheduled to
commence in September 2023, with bi-annualpayments due on the facility until September2030.

In conjunction with the $3.2 billion debt obtained duringthe first quarterof 2019 to refinance existing project
finance debt, APLNG made voluntary repayments of $2.2 billion and $1.0 billion to a syndicate of Australian
and international commercialbanksand the Export-Import Bank of China, respectively.

At September 30, 2020, a balance of $6.2 billion wasoutstandingon the facilities. See Note 11—Guarantees,
for additionalinformation.

At September 30, 2020, the carrying value of ourequity method investment in APLNG was $6,877 million.
The balanceisincluded in the “Investments and long-term receivables” line on our consolidated balance sheet.

Loans and Long-Term Receivables

As partof our normalongoingbusiness operations, and consistent with industry practice, we enter into
numerous agreements with other partiesto pursue business opportunities. Included in such activity are loans
made to certain affiliated and non-affiliated companies. At September 30,2020, significant loansto affiliated
companiesincluded $219 million in project financingto Qatar Liquefied Gas Company Limited (3).

On our consolidated balance sheet, the long-term portion of these loansis included in the “Loansand
advances—related parties” line, while the short-term portion is in the “Accounts and notes receivable—related
parties” line.

Note 6—Investment in Cenovus Energy

On May 17,2017, we completed the sale of our 50 percent nonoperated interest in the FCCL Partnership, as
well asthe majority of ourwestern Canada gasassets, to Cenovus Energy. Consideration forthe transaction
included 208 million CenovusEnergy common shares, which, at closing, approximated 16.9 percent of issued
and outstanding Cenovus Energy commonstock. The fairvalue and cost basis of our investment in 208
million Cenovus Energy common shareswas $1.96 billion based on a price of $9.41 per share on the NYSE on
the closing date.

At September 30, 2020, the investmentincluded on our consolidated balance sheet was $809 million and is
carried at fairvalue. The fairvalue of the 208 million Cenovus Energy common shares reflects the closing
price of $3.89 per share onthe NYSE on the lasttrading day of the quarter, a decrease of $1.30 billion from its
fairvalue of $2.11 billion atyear-end 2019. Forthe three- and nine-month periodsended September 30, 2020,
we recorded an unrealized loss of $162 million and $1.30 billion, respectively. For the three- and nine-month
periods ended September 30,2019, we recorded an unrealized gain of $116 million and $489 million,
respectively. The unrealized gains and losses are recorded within the “Other income (loss)” line of our
consolidated income statement and are related to the sharesheld at the reporting date. See Note 14—Fair
Value Measurement, foradditionalinformation. Subject to market conditions, we intend to decrease our
investment overtime through market transactions, private agreements or otherwise.



Note 7—Suspended Wells

The capitalized cost of suspended wells at September 30,2020, was $711 million, a decrease of $309 million

from year-end 2019 primarily related to our Australia-West divestiture. See Note 4—Asset Acquisitions and
Dispositions, for additionalinformation. Of the well costs capitalized for more than one yearasof December
31,2019,$20 million wascharged to dry hole expense during the first nine months of 2020 primarily forone

suspended well in the Kamunsu East Field offshore Malaysia.

Note 8—Impairments

During the three- and nine-month periodsended September 30,2020 and 2019, we recognized before-tax
impairment charges within the following segments:

Millions of Dollars

Three MonthsEnded Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019
Lower 48 $ 1 22 514 22
Europe, Middle Eastand North Africa 1 2 7 4
$ 2 24 521 26

We perform impairment reviews when triggering eventsarise that mayimpact the fairvalue of ourassetsor
investments.

We observed volatility in commodity prices during the first nine-months of 2020. A decline in commodity
prices beginning in March prompted usto evaluate the recoverability of the carrying value of our assetsand
whether an other than temporary impairment occurred forinvestments in our portfolio. For certain non-core
naturalgasassetsin the Lower 48, a significant decrease in the outlook forcurrent and long-term natural gas
prices resulted in a decline in the estimated fairvaluesto amountsbelowcarrying value. Accordingly, in the
first quarter of 2020, we recorded impairments of $511 million related to these non-core natural gasassets,
primarily for the Wind River Basin operationsarea consisting of developed properties in the Madden Field and
the Lost Cabin GasPlant, which were written down to fair value. See Note 14—Fair Value Measurement, for
additionalinformation.

A sustained decline in the currentand long-term outlook on commodity prices could trigger additional
impairment reviews and possibly result in future impairment charges.

The charges discussed below are included in the “Exploration expenses” line on our consolidated income
statement and are not reflected in the table above.

We recorded a before-tax impairment in the first quarter of 2020 of $31 million in our Asia Pacific segment
related to the associated carryingvalue of capitalized undevelopedleasehold costs forthe Kamunsu East Field
in Malaysia thatisno longer in ourdevelopment plans.

Inthe third quarterof 2019, we recorded a before-tax impairment of $141 million in our Lower 48 segment for
the associated carryingvalue of capitalized undeveloped leasehold costs due to our decision to discontinue
exploration activities in the Central Louisiana Austin Chalk trend.



Note 9—Debt

Our debtbalance asof September 30,2020 was $15,387 million compared with $14,895 million at December
31, 2019.

Our revolving credit facility providesa totalcommitment of $6.0 billion and expiresin May 2023. Our
revolving credit facility may be used for direct bank borrowings, the issuance of letters of credit totalingup to
$500 million, orassupport for ourcommercial paper program. Our commercial paper program consists of the
ConocoPhillips Company $6.0 billion program, primarily a fundingsource for short-term working capital
needs. Commercial papermaturitiesare generally limited to 90 days.

We issued $300 million of commercial paperin the third quarterof 2020, which is included in short-term debt
on our consolidated balance sheet. With $300 million of commercialpaperoutstandingand no direct
borrowings or letters of credit, we had $5.7 billion in available capacity underthe revolvingcredit facility at
September30,2020. We had no direct outstandingborrowings, letters of credit, nor outstanding commercial
paperasof December31,2019.

In October 2020, S&P affirmed its “A” rating on oursenior long-term debt and revised its outlook to “stable”
from “negative,” Fitch affirmed itsrating of “A” with a “stable” outlook and Moody’s affirmeditsrating of
“A3” with a “stable” outlook.

At September 30, 2020, we had $283 million of certain variable rate demandbonds (VRDBS) outstanding with
maturities ranging through 2035. The VRDBs are redeemable at the option of the bondholders on any business
day. Iftheyare ever redeemed, we have the ability and intent to refinance on a long-term basis, therefore, the
VRDBs are included in the “Long-term debt” line on our consolidated balance sheet.
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Note 10—Changesin Equity

Millions of Dollars

Attributable to ConocoPhillips

Common Stock

Capital in Accum. Other Non-
Par  Excess of  Treasury Comprehensive Retained  Controllinc
Value Par Stock Income (Loss)  Earnings Interests Total
For the three months ended September 30,2020
Balances at June 30,2020 $ 18 47,079 (47,130) (5,825) 37,351 31,493
Net loss (450) (450)
Other comprehensive income 159 159
Dividends paid ($0.42 per common share) (454) (454)
Distributed under benefitplans 34 34
Other 1 1
Balances at September 30, 2020 $ 18 47,113 (47,130) (5,666) 36,448 30,783
For the nine months ended September 30,2020
Balances at December 31,2019 $ 18 46,983 (46,405) (5,357) 39,742 69 35,050
Net income (loss) (1,929) 46 (1,883)
Other comprehensive loss (309) (309)
Dividends paid ($1.26 per common share) (1,367) (1,367)
Repurchase of company common stock (726) (726)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests and other (32) (32)
Disposition (84) (84)
Distributed under benefitplans 130 130
Other 1 2 1 4
Balances at September 30, 2020 $ 18 47,113 (47,130) (5,666) 36,448 - 30,783
Millions of Dollars
Attributable to ConocoPhillips
Common Stock
Capital in Accum. Other Non-
Par  Excess of  Treasury Comprehensive Retained  Controllinc
Value Par Stock Income (Loss) Earnings Interests Total
For the three months ended September 30,2019
Balances at June 30,2019 $ 18 46,922 (44,906) (5,827) 36,769 98 33,074
Net income 3,056 15 3,071
Other comprehensive income 173 173
Dividends paid ($0.31 per common share) (341) (341)
Repurchase of company common stock (749) (749)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests and other (20) (20)
Distributed under benefitplans 32 32
Other (1) (1)
Balances at September 30, 2019 $ 18 46,954 (45,656) (5,654) 39,484 93 35,239
For the nine months ended September 30,2019
Balances at December 31,2018 $ 18 46,879 (42,905) (6,063) 34,010 125 32,064
Net income 6,469 45 6,514
Other comprehensive income 449 449
Dividends paid ($0.92 per common share) (1,037) (1,037)
Repurchase of company common stock (2,751) (2,751)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests and other (80) (80)
Distributed under benefitplans 75 75
Changes in Accounting Principles* (40) 40 -
Other 2 3 5
Balances at September 30, 2019 $ 18 46,954 (45,656) (5,654) 39,484 93 35,239

*Cumulative effect of the adoption of ASU No.2018-02, "Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income."
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Note 11—Guarantees

At September 30, 2020, we were liable for certain contingent obligations undervarious contractual
arrangementsas described below. We recognize a liability, atinception, for the fair value of ourobligation as
a guarantorfornewly issued or modified guarantees. Unless the carrying amount of the liability is noted
below, we have not recognized a liability because the fairvalue of the obligation is immaterial. Inaddition,
unless otherwise stated, we are not currently performingwith any significance underthe guarantee and expect
future performance to be either immaterial or have only a remote chance of occurrence.

APLNG Guarantees

At September 30, 2020, we had outstanding multiple guarantees in connection with our 37.5 percent ownership
interest in APLNG. The following is a description of the guarantees with values calculated utilizing
September 2020 exchange rates:

e During the third quarterof 2016, we issued a guarantee to facilitate the withdrawal of ourpro-rata
portion of the funds in a project finance reserve account. We estimate the remainingterm of this
guaranteeis 10 years. Our maximumexposure under thisguarantee is approximately $170 million
and may become payable if an enforcement action is commenced by the project finance lenders
against APLNG. At September30, 2020, the carrying value of this guarantee wasapproximately $14
million.

e Inconjunction with our original purchase of an ownership interest in APLNG from Origin Energy in
October 2008, we agreed to reimburse Origin Energy for our share of the existing contingent liability
arising under guarantees of an existingobligation of APLNG to deliver naturalgasunderseveralsales
agreements with remainingterms of 1 to 22 years. Our maximum potential liability forfuture
payments, orcost of volume delivery, underthese guaranteesis estimated to be $720 million
($1.3 billion in the event of intentional or reckless breach),and would become payable if APLNG fails
to meetits obligations underthese agreementsand the obligations cannototherwise be mitigated.
Future paymentsare considered unlikely, asthe payments, or cost of volume delivery, would only be
triggered if APLNG doesnot have enough naturalgasto meet these sales commitmentsand if the
co-venturers do not make necessary equity contributionsinto APLNG.

¢ We haveguaranteedthe performance of APLNG with regard to certain other contracts executed in
connection with the project’s continued development. The guarantees have remaining terms of 16 to
25 yearsor the life of the venture. Our maximum potentialamountof future payments related to these
guaranteesisapproximately $120 million and would become payable if APLNG doesnot perform. At
September 30,2020, the carrying value of these guarantees wasapproximately $7 million.

Other Guarantees

We have other guarantees with maximum future potential payment amounts totalingapproximately

$750 million, which consist primarily of guarantees of the residual value of leased office buildings, guarantees
of the residualvalue of corporate aircrafts,and a guarantee for ourportion of a joint venture’s project finance
reserve accounts. These guaranteeshave remainingtermsof 1 to 5 yearsand would become payable if certain
asset valuesare lower than guaranteed amounts at the end of the lease or contract term, business conditions
decline atguaranteed entities, oras a result of nonperformance of contractualterms by guaranteed parties.

At September 30, 2020, the carrying value of these guaranteeswasapproximately $11 million.

Indemnifications

Over theyears, we have entered into agreements to sell ownership interests in certain legal entities, joint
venturesand assetsthat gave rise to qualifyingindemnifications. These agreementsinclude indemnifications
for taxesand environmental liabilities. The majority of these indemnificationsare related to tax issuesand the
majority of these expire in 2021. Those related to environmentalissues have termsthat are generally indefinite
and the maximumamounts of future paymentsare generally unlimited. The carryingamountrecorded for
these indemnification obligations at September 30,2020, was approximately $50 million. We amortize the
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indemnification liability over the relevant time period the indemnity is in effect, if one exists, based on the
factsand circumstances surroundingeach type of indemnity. In caseswhere the indemnification term is
indefinite, we will reverse the liability when we have information the liability is essentially relieved or
amortize the liability overanappropriate time period asthe fairvalue of our indemnification exposure
declines. Although it is reasonably possible future payments may exceed amounts recorded, due to the nature
of the indemnifications, itis not possible to make a reasonable estimate of the maximum potentialamount of
future payments. Foradditionalinformation about environmental liabilities, see Note 12—Contingenciesand
Commitments.

Note 12—Contingenciesand Commitments

A numberof lawsuits involving a variety of claims arising in the ordinary course of business have been filed
against ConocoPhillips. We also may be required to remove or mitigate the effectson the environment of the
placement, storage, disposalorrelease of certain chemical, mineral and petroleum substancesat variousactive
and inactive sites. We regularly assess the need for accountingrecognition or disclosure of these
contingencies. Inthe case of all known contingencies (other than those related to income taxes), we accrue a
liability when the loss is probable and the amountisreasonably estimable. Ifa range of amountscanbe
reasonably estimated and no amount within the range is a betterestimate than any otheramount, then the low
end of the range is accrued. We do notreduce these liabilities for potential insurance orthird-party recoveries.
We accruereceivablesfor insurance or otherthird-party recoveries when applicable. With respectto income
tax-related contingencies, we use a cumulative probability-weighted loss accrualin caseswhere sustaining a
tax position is less than certain.

Based on currently available information, we believe it is remote that future costs related to known contingent
liability exposureswill exceed currentaccrualsby anamount that would have a materialadverse impact on our
consolidated financialstatements. As we learn new facts concerning contingencies, we reassess our position
both with respect to accrued liabilities and other potentialexposures. Estimates particularly sensitive to future
changesinclude contingent liabilities recorded for environmental remediation, tax and legal matters.

Estimated future environmental remediation costs are subject to change due to such factorsasthe uncertain
magnitude of cleanup costs, the unknown time and extentof such remedialactions that maybe required, and
the determination of our liability in proportion to that of otherresponsible parties. Estimated future costs
related to tax and legal mattersare subjectto change aseventsevolve and asadditionalinformation becomes
available duringthe administrative and litigation processes.

Environmental

We are subject to international, federal, state and localenvironmental laws and regulations. When we prepare
our consolidated financial statements, we record accruals forenvironmental liabilities based on management’s
best estimates, using all information that isavailable at the time. We measure estimatesand base liabilities on
currently available facts, existingtechnology, and presently enacted laws and regulations, takinginto account
stakeholderand business considerations. When measuringenvironmental liabilities, we also considerour prior
experience in remediation of contaminated sites, other companies’ cleanup ex perience, and data released by
the U.S. EPA or otherorganizations. We considerunasserted claimsin our determination of environmental
liabilities, and we accrue them in the period they are both probable and reasonably estimable.

Although liability of those potentially responsible forenvironmental remediation costsis generally jointand
severalfor federalsites and frequently so for other sites, we are usually only one of many companiescited ata
particularsite. Due tothe jointand severalliabilities, we could be responsible forall cleanup costsrelated to
any site at which we have been designated asa potentially responsible party. We have been successfulto date
in sharing cleanup costswith otherfinancially sound companies. Many of the sites at which we are potentially
responsible are still under investigation by the EPA or the agency concerned. Prior to actualcleanup, those
potentially responsible normally assess the site conditions, apportion responsibility and determine the
appropriate remediation. Insome instances, we may have no liability or may attain a settlement of liability.
Where it appearsthat other potentially responsible partiesmay be financially unable to beartheir proportional
share, we consider this inability in estimatingour potentialliability, and we adjust ouraccrualsaccordingly.
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As aresult of variousacquisitions in the past, we assumed certain environmental obligations. Some of these
environmental obligationsare mitigated by indemnifications made by others forour benefit,and some of the
indemnificationsare subject to dollarlimits and time limits.

We are currently participatingin environmentalassessmentsand cleanupsat numerous federal Superfund and
comparable state and international sites. After an assessment of environmentalexposuresforcleanup and
othercosts, we make accruals on an undiscounted basis (except those acquired in a purchase business
combination, which we record on a discounted basis) for planned investigation and remediation activities for
sites where it is probable future costswill be incurred and these costscan be reasonably estimated. We have
notreduced these accrualsforpossible insurance recoveries.

At September 30, 2020, ourbalance sheet included a totalenvironmentalaccrual of $177 million, compared
with $171 million at December31, 2019, forremediation activitiesin the U.S. and Canada. We expectto
incur a substantialamount of these expenditures within the next 30 years. Inthe future, we may be involved in
additionalenvironmental assessments, cleanupsand proceedings.

Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various lawsuits and claims including but not limited to mattersinvolvingoil and gasroyalty
and severance tax payments, gas measurementand valuation methods, contract disputes, environmental
damages, climate change, personalinjury,and property damage. Our primary exposures forsuch matters
relate to alleged royalty and tax underpayments on certain federal, state and privately owned propertiesand
claims of alleged environmental contamination from historic operations. We will continue to defend ourselves
vigorously in these matters.

Our legal organization applies its knowledge, experience and professional judgment to the specific
characteristics of our cases, employinga litigation management processto manage and monitorthe legal
proceedings againstus. Our process facilitatesthe early evaluation and quantification of potentialexposuresin
individual cases. This processalso enablesusto track those casesthathave been scheduled fortrialand/or
mediation. Based on professionaljudgment and experience in using these litigation managementtoolsand
available information about current developmentsin all our cases, our legal organization regularly assessesthe
adequacy of currentaccruals and determines if adjustment of existingaccruals, or establishment of new
accruals, is required.

Other Contingencies

We have contingent liabilities resulting from throughput agreements with pipeline and processing companies
notassociated with financingarrangements. Under these agreements, we may be required to provide any such
companywith additional fundsthrough advances and penalties for fees related to throughput capacity not
utilized. Inaddition,at September30,2020,we had performance obligations secured by letters of credit of
$240 million (issued asdirect bank letters of credit) related to various purchase commitments for materials,
supplies, commercialactivitiesand servicesincident to the ordinary conduct of business.

In 2007, ConocoPhillips was unable to reach agreement with respect to the empresa mixta structure mandated
by the Venezuelan government’s Nationalization Decree. As a result, Venezuela’s national oil company,
Petrdleos de Venezuela, S.A. (PDVSA), or its affiliates, directly assumed control over ConocoPhillips’
interests in the Petrozuataand Hamaca heavy oil ventures and the offshore Corocoro development project. In
response to this expropriation, ConocoPhillips initiated international arbitration on November 2,2007, with the
ICSID. On September 3,2013,an ICSIDarbitration tribunalheld that VVenezuela unlawfully expropriated
ConocoPhillips” significant oil investmentsin June 2007. On January 17,2017, the Tribunalreconfirmed the
decision that the expropriation wasunlawful. In March 2019, the Tribunalunanimously ordered the
government of Venezuela to pay ConocoPhillips approximately $8.7 billion in compensation forthe
government’s unlawfulexpropriation of the company’s investmentsin Venezuela in 2007. ConocoPhillips has
filed a request forrecognition of the award in severaljurisdictions. On August 29,2019, the ICSID Tribunal
issued a decision rectifying the award and reducingit by approximately $227 million. The award nowstands
at$8.5 billion plus interest. The government of Venezuela soughtannulment of the award, which
automatically stayed enforcement of the award. Annulment proceedingsare underway.
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In 2014, ConocoPhillips filed a separate and independent arbitration underthe rules of the ICC against
PDVSA underthe contractsthat had established the Petrozuataand Hamaca projects. The ICC Tribunalissued
anaward in April 2018, finding that PDVSA owed ConocoPhillips approximately $2 billion under their
agreementsin connection with the expropriation of the projectsand other pre-expropriation fiscalmeasures. In
August 2018, ConocoPhillips entered into a settlement with PDVSA to recoverthe fullamount of thisICC
award, plus interest through the payment period, including initial payments totalingapproximately

$500 million within a period of 90 days from the time of signing of the settlement agreement. The balance of
the settlement s to be paid quarterly overa period of fourand a half years. To date, ConocoPhillips has
received approximately $754 million. Per the settlement, PDVSA recognized the ICC award asa judgment in
various jurisdictions, and ConocoPhillips agreed to suspend its legal enforcementactions. ConocoPhillips sent
notices of defaultto PDVSA on October 14 and November12,2019,and to date PDVSA has failed to cure its
breach. As aresult, ConocoPhillips hasresumed legal enforcement actions. ConocoPhillips has ensured that
the settlementand any actions taken in enforcement thereof meet allappropriate U.S. regulatory requirements,
including those related to any applicable sanctionsimposed by the U.S. against Venezuela.

In 2016, ConocoPhillips filed a separate and independent arbitration underthe rules of the ICC against
PDVSA underthe contracts that had established the Corocoro Project. On August 2,2019,the ICC Tribunal
awarded ConocoPhillips approximately $33 million plus interest under the Corocoro contracts.
ConocoPhillips is seeking recognition and enforcement of the award in various jurisdictions. ConocoPhillips
hasensured thatallthe actionsrelated to the award meetallappropriate U.S. regulatory requirements,
including those related to any applicable sanctions imposed by the U.S. against Venezuela.

The Office of Natural Resources Revenue (ONRR) hasconducted audits of ConocoPhillips’ payment of
royaltieson federallandsand hasissued multiple orders to pay additional royalties to the federal government.
ConocoPhillips hasappealed these orders and strongly objectsto the ONRR claims. The appealsare pending
with the Interior Board of Land Appeals (IBLA), except forone order that is the subject of a lawsuit
ConocoPhillips filed in 2016 in New Mexico federalcourt afteritsappealwasdenied by the IBLA.

Beginning in 2017, cities, counties, governmentsand otherentities in several states in the U.S. have filed
lawsuits against oil and gascompanies, including ConocoPhillips, seeking compensatory damages and
equitable relief to abate alleged climate change impacts. Additionallawsuits with similar allegationsare
expected to be filed. The amountsclaimed by plaintiffsare unspecified and the legaland factual issues
involved in these casesare unprecedented. ConocoPhillips believes these lawsuits are factually and legally
meritless and are an inappropriate vehicle to address the challenges associated with climate change and will
vigorously defend against such lawsuits.

Several Louisiana parishesand the State of Louisiana have filed 43 lawsuits under Louisiana’s State and Local
Coastal Resources Management Act (SLCRMA) against oil and gas companies, including ConocoPhillips,
seeking compensatory damages for contamination and erosion of the Louisiana coastline allegedly caused by
historical oil and gas operations. ConocoPhillips entities are defendants in 22 of the lawsuits and will
vigorously defend againstthem. Because Plaintiffs’ SLCRMA theories are unprecedented, there is uncertainty
aboutthese claims (both asto scope and damages) and any potential financial impact on the company.

In 2016, ConocoPhillips, through its subsidiary, The Louisiana Land and Exploration Company LLC,
submitted claimsasthe largest private wetlands owner in Louisiana within the settlement claims
administration process related to the oil spill in the Gulf of Mexico in April 2010. InJuly 2020, the claims
administratorissued an award to the company which, afterfeesand expenses, totaled approximately $90
million, which was received in the third quarterof 2020.

In October 2020, the Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement (BSEE) ordered the prior owners of
Outer Continental Shelf (OCS) Lease P-0166, including ConocoPhillips, to decommission the lease facilities,
including two offshore platformslocated near Carpinteria, California. This order was sent afterthe current
owner of OCS Lease P-0166 relinquished the lease and abandoned the lease platformsand facilities. Phillips
Petroleum Company, a legacy company of ConocoPhillips, held a 25 percent interest in this lease and operated
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these facilities, but sold its interest approximately 30 yearsago. ConocoPhillips hasnothad any connection to
the operation or production on this lease since thattime. ConocoPhillips plansto challenge the order.

Note 13—Derivative and Financial Instruments

We use futures, forwards, swaps and options in various markets to meet our customer needs, capture market
opportunitiesand manage foreign exchange currency risk.

Commodity Derivative Instruments
Our commodity business primarily consists of naturalgas, crude oil, bitumen, LNG and NGLs.

Commodity derivative instrumentsare held at fairvalue on our consolidated balance sheet. Where these
balances have the right of setoff, they are presented on a net basis. Related cash flows are recorded as
operatingactivities on our consolidated statement of cash flows. On our consolidated income statement,
realized and unrealized gainsand losses are recognized either on a gross basisif directly related to our physical
business or a net basis if held for trading. Gains and losses related to contracts that meet and are designated
with the NPNS exception are recognized upon settlement. We generally apply this exception to eligible crude
contracts. We do notelect hedge accountingforourcommodity derivatives.

The following table presents the gross fair values of our commodity derivatives, excludingcollateral, and the
line items where they appearon ourconsolidated balance sheet:

Millions of Dollars
September 30 December31

2020 2019
Assets
Prepaid expensesand other current assets $ 273 288
Other assets 28 34
Liabilities
Other accruals 258 283
Other liabilities and deferred credits 19 28

The gains (losses) from commodity derivatives incurred, and the line itemswhere they appearon our
consolidated income statement were:

Millions of Dollars
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019
Sales and other operatingrevenues $ 33 4 30 68
Other income (loss) (2) 3 3 4
Purchased commodities (27) 9) (29) (60)
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The table below summarizes our material net exposures resulting from outstandingcommodity derivative
contracts:

Open Position

Long/(Short)
September 30  December31
2020 2019
Commodity
Naturalgasand power (billions of cubic feetequivalent)
Fixed price ) 5)
Basis (50) (23)

Foreign Currency Exchange Derivatives

We have foreign currency exchange rate risk resulting from international operations. Qurforeign currency
exchange derivative activity primarily relatesto managingour cash -related foreign currency exchange rate
exposures, such as firm commitments for capital programs or local currency tax payments, dividends and cash
returns from net investments in foreign affiliates, and investments in equity securities.

Our foreign currency exchange derivative instrumentsare held at fairvalue on our consolidated balance sheet.
Related cash flows are recorded as operatingactivities on our consolidated statement of cash flows. We do not
elect hedge accountingon our foreign currency exchange derivatives.

The following table presentsthe gross fair valuesof our foreign currency exchange derivatives, excluding
collateral,and the line items where they appearon ourconsolidated balance sheet:

Millions of Dollars
September 30 December31

2020 2019
Assets
Prepaid expensesand other current assets $ 16 1
Liabilities
Other accruals - 20
Other liabilities and deferred credits - 8

The (gains) losses from foreign currency exchange derivativesincurred, and the line item where they appear
onour consolidated income statement were:

Millions of Dollars
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019
Foreign currency transaction (gain) loss $ 7 (24) (55) (3)
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We had the following net notional position of outstanding foreign currency exchange derivatives:

In Millions
Notional Currency
September 30 December31

2020 2019
Foreign Currency Exchange Derivatives
Buy GBP, sell EUR GBP 3 4
Sell CAD, buy USD CAD 416 1,337

Inthe second quarterof 2019, we entered into foreign currency exchange contractsto sell CAD 1.35 billion at
CAD 0.748againstthe USD. Inthe first quarterof 2020, we entered into forward currency exchange contracts
to buy CAD 0.9 billion at CAD 0.718 against the USD.

Financial Instruments
We invest in financialinstruments with maturities based on our cash forecasts forthe variousaccountsand
currency pools we manage. Thetypesof financialinstrumentsin which we currently investinclude:

o Time deposits: Interest bearing deposits placed with financialinstitutions fora predetermined amount
of time.

o Demand deposits: Interest bearingdeposits placed with financial institutions. Deposited fundscan be
withdrawn without notice.

e Commercial paper: Unsecured promissory notesissued by a corporation, commercialbank or
governmentagency purchased ata discountto mature at par.

o U.S. government orgovernmentagency obligations: Securities issued by the U.S. government or U.S.
governmentagencies.

e Foreign government obligations: Securities issued by foreign governments.

o Corporate bonds: Unsecured debt securities issued by corporations.

e Asset-backed securities: Collateralized debt securities.

The following investments are carried on our consolidated balance sheet at cost, plusaccrued interest:

Millions of Dollars
Carrying Amount

Cashand Cash Short-Term
Equivalents Investments
September 30 December31l September 30 December31
2020 2019 2020 2019
Cash $ 545 759
Demand Deposits 1,182 1,483
Time Deposits
Remaining maturities from 1 to 90 days 755 2,030 2,961 1,395
Remainingmaturitiesfrom 91 to 180 days - - 741 465
Remaining maturities within one year - - 7 -
Commercial Paper
Remainingmaturities from 1 to 90 days - 413 50 1,069
U.S. Government Obligations
Remainingmaturitiesfrom 1 to 90 days 5 394 - -
$ 2,487 5,079 3,759 2,929
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The following investmentsin debt securities classified asavailable forsale are carried on ourconsolidated
balancesheetat fairvalue:

Millions of Dollars
Carrying Amount

Short-Term Investmentsand Long-Term
Cash and Cash Equivalents Investments Receivables
September 30 December 31 September 30 December 31 September 30 December 31
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Corporate Bonds
Maturities withinoneyear $ - 1 157 59 - -
Maturities greater than one year
through five years - - - - 128 99
Commercial Paper
Maturities withinoneyear 3 8 108 30 - -
U.S. Government Obligations
Maturities withinoneyear - - 8 10 - -
Maturities greater than one year
through five years - - - - 13 15

U.S. Government Agency Obligations
Maturities greater than one year

through five years - - - - 17 -
Foreign Government Obligations
Maturities greater than one year

through five years - - - - 2 -
Asset-backed Securities
Maturities greater than one year

through five years - - - - 46 19

$ 3 9 273 99 206 133

The following table summarizes the amortized cost basisand fairvalue of investments in debt securities
classified asavailable forsale:

Millions of Dollars
September 30,2020 December31, 2019

Amortized Amortized
Cost Basis Fair Value Cost Basis Fair Value

Major Security Type

Corporate bonds $ 283 285 159 159
Commercial paper 111 111 38 38
U.S. government obligations 21 21 25 25
U.S. governmentagency obligations 17 17 - -
Foreign government obligations 2 2 - -
Asset-backed securities 46 46 19 19

$ 480 482 241 241

As of September 30,2020 and December 31,2019, total unrealized losses for debt securities classified as
available forsale with net losses were negligible. Additionally, asof September 30,2020 and December 31,
2019, investments in these debt securities in an unrealized loss position forwhich anallowance forcredit
losses has not been recorded were negligible.
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For the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30,2020, proceeds from salesand redemptions of
investments in debt securities classified asavailable forsale were $109 million and $298 million, respectively.
Gross realized gains and losses included in earnings from those sales and redemptions were negligible. The
cost of securities sold and redeemed is determined using the specific identification method.

Credit Risk

Financialinstruments potentially exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
short-term investments, long-term investmentsin debt securities, OTC derivative contractsand trade
receivables. Our cash equivalentsandshort-term investmentsare placed in high-quality commercial paper,
government money market funds, government debt securities, time deposits with major international banksand
financialinstitutions, and high-quality corporate bonds. Ourlong-term investmentsin debt securities are
placed in high-quality corporate bonds, U.S. government and government agency obligations, foreign
government obligations, and asset-backed securities.

The credit risk from our OTC derivative contracts, such asforwards, swapsand options, derives from the
counterparty to the transaction. Individual counterparty exposure ismanaged within predetermined credit
limits and includesthe use of cash-callmarginswhen appropriate, thereby reducingthe risk of significant
nonperformance. We also use futures, swapsand option contractsthat have a negligible credit risk because
these tradesare cleared with an exchange clearinghouse and subject to mandatory margin requirements until
settled; however, we are exposed to the credit risk of those exchange brokersforreceivables arising from daily
margin cash calls, aswell asfor cash deposited to meet initial margin requirements.

Our trade receivablesresult primarily from our petroleum operationsand reflect a broad nationaland
international customer base, which limits our exposure to concentrations of credit risk. The majority of these
receivables have paymenttermsof 30 daysorless, and we continually monitorthisexposure and the
creditworthiness of the counterparties. Our collateral requirementswill depend on the creditworthiness of our
counterparties. At ouroption,we may require collateralto limit the exposureto loss including, letters of
credit, prepaymentsand surety bonds, aswell as master nettingarrangements to mitigate credit risk with
counterparties that both buy from and sell to us, as these agreements permit the amounts owed by us or owed
to others to be offsetagainstamounts due to us.

Certain of our derivative instruments contain provisions that require usto post collateral if the derivative
exposure exceedsa threshold amount. We have contracts with fixed threshold amountsand other contracts
with variable threshold amountsthatare contingent on our creditrating. The variable threshold amounts
typically decline for lower credit ratings, while both the variable and fixed threshold amounts typically revert
to zero if we fall below investment grade. Cash is the primary collateralin all contracts; however,manyalso
permit usto post letters of credit as collateral, such astransactionsadministered through the New York
Mercantile Exchange.

The aggregate fairvalue of all derivative instruments with such credit risk-related contingent featuresthat were
in a liability position on September30,2020 and December 31,2019, was$20 million and $79 million,
respectively. For these instruments, no collateralwas posted asof September 30,2020 or December31, 2019.
If our credit rating had been downgraded belowinvestment grade on September 30,2020, we would have been
required to post $16 million of additionalcollateral, eitherwith cash or letters of credit.
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Note 14—Fair Value Measurement

We carry a portion of our assetsand liabilities at fair value measured at the reportingdate usingan exit price
(i.e., the price thatwould be received to sell an asset or paid to transfera liability) and disclosed accordingto
the quality of valuation inputs underthe following hierarchy:

o Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market foridenticalassets or liabilities.
o Level 2: Inputsotherthan quoted pricesthat are directly or indirectly observable.
e Level 3: Unobservable inputsthat are significant to the fairvalue of assets or liabilities.

The classification hierarchy of an asset or liability is based on the lowest level of input significantto its fair
value. Those thatare initially classified as Level 3 are subsequently reported as Level 2 when the fair value
derived from unobservable inputsis inconsequential to the overall fair value, or if corroborated market data
becomesavailable. Assets and liabilities initially reported as Level 2 are subsequently reported as Level 3 if
corroborated market dataisno longer available. There were no materialtransfers into orout of Level 3 during
2020 0r 2019.

Recurring Fair Value Measurement

Financialassetsand liabilities reported at fair value on a recurring basis primarily include our investmentin
Cenovus Energy common shares, our investments in debt securities classified asavailable forsale,and
commodity derivatives.

o Level 1 derivative assetsand liabilities primarily represent exchange-traded futuresandoptionsthatare
valued using unadjusted prices available from the underlyingexchange. Level1 also includes our
investment in common shares of Cenovus Energy, which is valued using quotes forshareson the NYSE,
and ourinvestmentsin U.S. government obligations classified asavailable forsale debt securities, which
are valued using exchange prices.

o Level 2 derivative assetsand liabilities primarily represent OTC swaps, optionsand forward purchase and
sale contractsthatare valued usingadjusted exchange prices, prices provided by brokers or pricing service
companiesthatare allcorroborated by market data. Level2 also includes ourinvestmentsin debt
securities classified asavailable forsale including investments in corporate bonds, commercial paper,
asset-backed securities, U.S. government agency obligationsand foreign government obligationsthatare
valued using pricing provided by brokers or pricing service companiesthat are corroborated with market
data.

e Level 3 derivative assetsand liabilities consist of OTC swaps, optionsand forward purchase and sale
contracts where a significant portion of fair value is calculated from underlying market data that is not
readily available. The derived value uses industry standard methodologies that may considerthe historical
relationshipsamongvarious commodities, modeled market prices, time value, volatility factorsand other
relevant economic measures. The use of these inputs results in management’s best estimate of fairvalue.
Level 3 activity was not material forall periods presented.
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The following table summarizesthe fairvalue hierarchy forgross financialassetsand liabilities (i.e.,
unadjusted where the right of setoff exists for commodity derivativesaccounted forat fairvalue ona recurring
basis):

Millions of Dollars
September 30,2020 December31, 2019
Levell Level2 Level3 Total Levell Level2 Level3 Total

Assets

Investmentin Cenovus Energy $ 809 - - 809 2,111 - - 2,111
Investments in debt securities 21 461 - 482 25 216 - 241
Commodity derivatives 173 117 11 301 172 114 36 322
Totalassets $ 1,003 578 11 1592 2,308 330 36 2,674
Liabilities

Commodity derivatives $ 173 89 15 277 174 115 22 311
Totalliabilities $ 173 89 15 277 174 115 22 311

The following table summarizes those commodity derivative balances subjectto the right of setoff as
presented on our consolidated balance sheet. We have elected to offset the recognized fair value amounts for
multiple derivative instruments executed with the same counterparty in our financial statementswhen a legal
right of setoff exists.

Millions of Dollars
Amounts Subject to Right of Setoff
Gross  Amounts Not Gross Net
Amounts Subjectto Gross Amounts Amounts Cash Net
Recognized Right of Setoff Amounts Offset Presented Collateral Amounts
September 30,2020

Assets $ 301 1 300 204 96 5 91
Liabilities 277 - 277 204 73 7 66
December31, 2019

Assets $ 322 3 319 193 126 4 122
Liabilities 311 4 307 193 114 12 102

At September 30, 2020 and December31,2019, we did not presentany amounts gross on our consolidated
balance sheet where we had the right of setoff.

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurement

The following table summarizesthe fairvalue hierarchy by major category and date of remeasurement for
assetsaccountedforatfairvalue ona non-recurring basis:

Millions of Dollars

Fair Value
Measurement
Using
Before-Tax
Fair Value Level 3 Inputs Loss
Net PP&E (held foruse)
March 31, 2020 $ 77 77 510
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During the first quarterof 2020, the estimated fairvalue of ourassets in the Wind River Basin operationsarea
declined to an amount belowthe carryingvalue. The Wind River Basin operationsarea consists of certain
developed natural gas propertiesin the Madden Field and the Lost Cabin GasPlant and is included in our
Lower 48 segment. The carrying value was written down to fair value. The fair value wasestimated based on
aninternaldiscounted cash flowmodelusing estimates of future production, an outlook of future prices using
a combination of exchanges (short-term)and external pricing services companies (long-term), future operating
costs and capitalexpenditures,and a discount rate believed to be consistent with those used by principal
market participants. The range and arithmetic average of significant unobservable inputs used in the Level 3
fairvalue measurementwere asfollows:

FairValue
(Millions of Valuation Range
Dollars) Technique Unobservable Inputs  (Arithmetic Average)
March 31,2020
Discounted cash Natural gas production
Wind River Basin $ 77 flow (MMCFD) 8.4-55.2(22.9)

Naturalgas price outlook*
($/MMBTU)  $2.67 -$9.17 ($5.68)

Discountrate*  7.9% -9.1% (8.3%)

*Henry Hub natural gas price outlook based on external pricing service companies' outlooks for years 2022-2034; future prices escalated at 2.2% annually after
year 2034.

**Determined as the weighted average cost of capital of agroup of peer companies, adjusted for risks where appropriate.

Reported Fair Values of Financial Instruments
We used the following methodsand assumptions to estimate the fairvalue of financial instruments:

e Cashand cashequivalentsand short-term investments: The carryingamount reported on the balance
sheet approximates fairvalue. For those investments classified asavailable forsale debt securities,
the carryingamount reported on the balance sheetis fair value.

e Accountsand notesreceivable (including long-term and related parties): The carrying amount
reported on the balance sheet approximatesfairvalue. The valuation technique and methods used to
estimate the fairvalue of the current portion of fixed -rate related party loansis consistent with Loans
and advances—related parties.

e Investmentin CenovusEnergy: See Note 6—Investmentin Cenovus Energy for a discussion of the
carrying value and fairvalue of ourinvestment in Cenovus Energy common shares.

e Investmentsin debt securities classified asavailable forsale: The fair value of investmentsin debt
securities categorized asLevel 1 in the fairvalue hierarchy is measured usingexchange prices. The
fairvalue of investmentsin debt securities categorized as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy is
measured using pricing provided by brokers or pricing service companiesthatare corroborated with
market data. See Note 13—Derivativesand Financial Instruments, foradditional information.

e Loansandadvances—related parties: The carryingamount of floating-rate loansapproximates fair
value. The fairvalue of fixed-rate loan activity is measured using market observable dataand is
categorized asLevel 2 in the fairvalue hierarchy. See Note 5—Investments, Loansand Long-Term
Receivables, for additional information.

e Accountspayable (including related parties) and floating-rate debt: The carryingamount of accounts
payable and floating-rate debt reported on the balance sheet approximates fairvalue.

o Fixed-rate debt: The estimated fairvalue of fixed-rate debt is measured using prices available from a
pricing service thatis corroborated by market data; therefore, these liabilities are categorized as Level
2 in the fairvalue hierarchy.

e Commercial paper: The carryingamount of ourcommercial paperinstruments approximates fairvalue
and is reported on the balance sheetasshort-term debt. See Note 9—Debt, for additional information.
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The following table summarizesthe net fairvalue of financialinstruments (i.e., adjusted where the right of

setoff exists for commodity derivatives):

Millions of Dollars

Carrying Amount Fair Value
September 30 December31  September 30 December31
2020 2019 2020 2019
Financial assets
Investment in Cenovus Energy $ 809 2,111 809 2,111
Commodity derivatives 92 125 92 125
Investmentsin debt securities 482 241 482 241
Totalloansand advances—related parties 219 339 219 339
Financial liabilities
Totaldebt, excluding finance leases 14,482 14,175 18,827 18,108
Commodity derivatives 66 106 66 106
Note 15—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Accumulated other comprehensive loss in the equity section of ourconsolidated balance sheet included:
Millions of Dollars
Net Accumulated
Unrealized Foreign Other
Defined Gainon  Currency Comprehensive
BenefitPlans  Securities Translation Loss
December31, 2019 $ (350) - (5,007) (5,357)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (13) 2 (298) (309)
September 30,2020 $ (363) 2 (5,305) (5,666)

The following table summarizes reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive lossand into net

income (loss):

Defined benefit plans

Millions of Dollars
Three MonthsEnded Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 30 36 46 66

The above amounts are included in the computation of net periodic benefit cost and are presented net of tax expense of $7 million and $12
million for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019, respectively, and $11 million and $22 million for the
nine-month periods ended September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019, respectively. See Note 17—Employee Benefit Plans, for additional

information.
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Note 16—Cash Flow Information

Cash Payments
Interest
Income taxes

Millions of Dollars
Nine Months Ended

September 30
2020 2019
$ 591 614
803 2,210

Net Sales (Purchases) of Investments

Short-term investments purchased
Short-term investmentssold
Long-term investments purchased
Long-term investmentssold

$  (9662)  (1,894)
8,776 1,229
271) -

68

$  (1,089) (665-)

Note 17—Employee Benefit Plans

Pension and Postretirement Plans

Millions of Dollars

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2020 2019 2020 2019
u.S. Int'l. u.sS. Int'l.

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Three Months Ended September 30
Service cost $ 21 14 20 19 1 1
Interest cost 17 21 21 25 2 1
Expected return on plan assets (21) (37) (18) (34) - -
Amortization of prior service credit - @ - - (7 )
Recognized net actuarialloss (gain) 12 5 13 7 1 ()]
Settlements 27 - 37 - - -
Curtailments - - - @) - -
Net periodic benefit cost $ 56 2 73 16 (3) (6)
Nine Months Ended September 30
Service cost $ 63 41 59 56 2 1
Interest cost 51 63 63 77 5 6
Expected return on plan assets (63) (108) (54) (104) - -
Amortization of prior service credit - 1) - (D) (23) (24)
Recognized net actuarialloss (gain) 37 16 39 23 1 2
Settlements 28 Q) 54 - - -
Curtailments - - - (1) - -
Net periodic benefit cost $ 116 10 161 50 (15) (19)

The components of net periodic benefit cost, otherthan the service cost component, are included in the “Other
expenses” line item on our consolidated income statement.

During the first nine monthsof 2020, we contributed $87 million to our domestic benefit plansand $57 million
toour internationalbenefit plans. 1n 2020, we expectto contribute a total of approximately $135 million to
our domestic qualified and nonqualified pension and postretirement benefit plansand $65 million to our
international qualified and nonqualified pension and postretirement benefit plans.
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During the three-month period ended September 30,2020, lump-sum benefit payments exceeded the sum of
service and interest costs for the yearforthe U.S. qualified pension plan. As a result, we recognized a
proportionate share of prior actuarial losses from other comprehensive income as pension settlement expense
of $27 million. In conjunction with the recognition of pension settlement expense, the fairmarket values of
the pension plan assetswere updated and the pension benefit obligation of the plan wasremeasured as of
September30,2020. At the measurement date, the net pension liability increased by $78 million, resulting in a
correspondingdecrease to other comprehensive loss. This is primarily a result of a decrease in the discount
rate and reduced long-term lump sum rate assumptions offset by betteractual return on assets compared with
the expected return.

Note 18—Related Party Transactions

Our related parties primarily include equity method investments and certain trusts for the benefit of
employees. For disclosures on trusts for the benefit of employees, see Note 17—Employee Benefit Plans.

Significant transactions with our equity affiliates were:

Millions of Dollars
Three MonthsEnded Nine MonthsEnded
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Operating revenuesand otherincome $ 21 23 59 70
Purchases - - - 38
Operating expensesand selling, general and administrative

expenses 16 19 43 47
Net interest income* (1) (3) (5) (10)

*We paid interest to, or received interest from, various affiliates. See Note 5—Investments, Loans and Long-Term Receivables, for additional
information on loans to affiliated companies.

Note 19—Salesand Other Operating Revenues

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The following table provides further disaggregation of our consolidated salesand other operatingrevenues:

Millions of Dollars
Three MonthsEnded  Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue from contracts with customers $ 3,078 6,240 9,908 19,932
Revenue from contracts outside the scope of ASC Topic 606
Physical contracts meetingthe definition of a derivative 1,280 1,529 3,432 4,981
Financialderivative contracts 28 (13) (47 (54)
Consolidated salesand other operatingrevenues $ 4,386 7,756 13,293 24,859
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Revenues from contracts outside the scope of ASC Topic 606 relate primarily to physicalgas contractsat
market prices which qualify asderivatives accounted forunder ASC Topic 815, “Derivatives and Hedging,”
and forwhich we have notelected NPNS. There is no significant difference in contractual termsor the policy
for recognition of revenue from these contractsand those within the scope of ASC Topic 606. The following
disaggregation of revenuesis provided in conjunction with Note 20—Segment Disclosures and Related
Information:

Millions of Dollars
Three MonthsEnded  Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue from Outside the Scope of ASC Topic606

by Segment

Lower 48 $ 1,018 1,099 2,692 3,823
Canada 152 86 452 427
Europe, Middle Eastand North Africa 110 344 288 731
Physical contracts meeting the definition of a derivative $ 1,280 1,529 3,432 4,981

Millions of Dollars
Three MonthsEnded  Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue from Outside the Scope of ASC Topic606

by Product
Crude oil $ 100 266 218 619
Naturalgas 1,042 1,159 2,895 4,022
Other 138 104 319 340
Physical contracts meeting the definition of a derivative $ 1,280 1,529 3,432 4,981

Practical Expedients

Typically, our commodity sales contracts are lessthan 12 monthsin duration; however, in certain specific
cases may extend longer, which may be outto the end of field life. We have long-term commodity sales
contractswhich use prevailing market prices at the time of delivery, and under these contracts, the market-
based variable consideration foreach performance obligation (i.e., delivery of commodity)is allocated to each
wholly unsatisfied performance obligation within the contract. Accordingly, we have applied the practical
expedientallowed in ASC Topic 606 and do not disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations orwhen we expectto recognize revenuesthatare unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) as of the end of the reporting period.

Receivablesand Contract Liabilities

Receivablesfrom Contracts with Customers

At September30, 2020, the “Accounts and notes receivable” line on our consolidated balance sheet, includes
trade receivables of $1,338 million compared with $2,372 million at December 31,2019, and includes both
contracts with customers within the scope of ASC Topic 606 and those thatare outside the scope of ASC
Topic 606. We typically receive payment within 30 daysor less (dependingon the terms of the invoice) once
delivery is made. Revenuesthatare outside the scope of ASC Topic 606 relate primarily to physicalgas sales
contractsat market prices forwhich we do notelect NPNS and are therefore accounted forasa derivative
under ASC Topic 815. There is little distinction in the nature of the customerorcredit quality of trade
receivables associated with gas sold under contracts forwhich NPNS has not been elected compared to trade
receivableswhere NPNS hasbeen elected.
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Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers

We have entered into contractualarrangements where we license proprietary technology to customers related
to the optimization process foroperating LNG plants. The agreementstypically provide fornegotiated
paymentsto be made at stated milestones. The paymentsare not directly related to our performance underthe
contractand are recorded asdeferred revenue to be recognized as revenue when the customer can utilize and
benefit from their right to use the license. Paymentsare received in installments overthe construction period.

Millions of Dollars

Contract Liabilities

At December 31,2019 $ 80

Contractual payments received 8

At September 30, 2020 $ 88

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2020

Current liabilities $ 47

Noncurrent liabilities 41
$ 88

We expect to recognize the contract liabilities asof September 30,2020, asrevenue during 2021 and 2022.
There were no revenuesrecognized forthe three- and nine-month periods ended September 30,2020.

Note 20—Segment Disclosures and Related Information

We explore for, produce, transportand market crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas, LNG and NGLs on a worldwide
basis. We manage ouroperations through six operatingsegments, which are primarily defined by geographic
region: Alaska; Lower 48; Canada; Europe, Middle East and North Africa; Asia Pacific and Other
International.

Corporate and Otherrepresents income and costs not directly associated with an operatingsegment, such as
most interest expense, corporate overhead and certain technology activities, including licensing revenues.
Corporate assetsinclude all cash and cash equivalentsand short-term investments.

We evaluate performance and allocate resources based on netincome (loss) attributable to ConocoPhillips.
Intersegment salesare at prices thatapproximate market.

Effective with the third quarterof 2020, we have restructured oursegmentsto align with changesto our
internal organization. The Middle East businesswas realigned from the Asia Pacificand Middle East segment
to the Europe and North Africa segment. The segmentshave been renamed the Asia Pacific segmentand the
Europe, Middle Eastand North Africa segment. We have revised segment information disclosuresand
segment performance metrics presented within our results of operations forthe current and prior comparative
periods.
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Analysis of Results by Operating Segment

Millions of Dollars

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Sales and Other Operating Revenues

Alaska 864 1,296 2,396 4,129

Intersegment eliminations (30) - (11) -
Alaska 834 1,296 2,385 4,129

Lower 48 2,323 3,728 6,859 11,690

Intersegment eliminations (©)] (10) (47) (33)
Lower 48 2,314 3,718 6,812 11,657

Canada 348 633 1,026 2,173

Intersegment eliminations (20) (273) (200) (858)
Canada 328 360 826 1,315
Europe, Middle Eastand North Africa 432 1,225 1,320 4,084
Asia Pacific 477 1,085 1,930 3,458
Other International 1 - 5 -
Corporate and Other - 72 15 216
Consolidated salesand other operating revenues 4,386 7,756 13,293 24,859
Sales and Other Operating Revenues by Geographic Location®)
United States 3,148 5,085 9,209 15,996
Australia - 412 605 1,282
Canada 328 360 826 1,315
China 161 191 374 593
Indonesia 167 223 503 654
Libya 6 288 50 809
Malaysia 148 258 447 928
Norway 358 632 1,046 1,781
United Kingdom 68 305 224 1,494
Other foreign countries 2 2 9 7
Worldwide consolidated 4,386 7,756 13,293 24,859
Sales and Other Operating Revenues by Product
Crudeoil 2,321 4,612 6,981 14,006
Naturalgas 1,509 1,799 4,354 6,717
Naturalgas liquids 129 156 364 607
Other(® 427 1,189 1,594 3,529
Consolidated salesand other operatingrevenues by product $ 4,386 7,756 13,293 24,859

(1) Sales and other operating revenues are attributable to countries based on the location of the selling operation.

(2) Includes LNG and bitumen.
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Millions of Dollars

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September30 September30

2020 2019 2020 2019
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips
Alaska $ (16) 306 (76) 1,152
Lower 48 (78) 26 (880) 425
Canada (75) 51 (270) 273
Europe, Middle Eastand North Africa 92 2,171 318 3,050
Asia Pacific 25 443 945 1,220
Other International 8) 73 14 285
Corporate and Other (390) (14) (1,980) 64

Consolidated net income (loss) attributable to ConocoPhillips $ (450) 3,056 (1,929) 6,469

Millions of Dollars
September 30 December31

2020 2019
Total Assets
Alaska $ 15,910 15,453
Lower 48 12,196 14,425
Canada 6,581 6,350
Europe, Middle Eastand North Africa 8,420 9,269
Asia Pacific 11,359 13,568
Other International 300 285
Corporate and Other 8,391 11,164
Consolidated total assets $ 63,157 70,514

Note 21—Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 12 percent in the three-month periodsended September 30,2020 and 2019. Both
periods were primarily impacted by shiftsin our before-tax income between higherand lower tax jurisdictions
aswell asthe change in ourU.S. valuation allowance driven by the fair value measurement of our Cenovus
Energy common shares. The three-month period ended September 30,2019 wasalso impacted by the
recognition of certain tax incentivesin Malaysia.

Our effective tax rates forthe nine-month periods ended September 30,2020 and 2019 were 8 percentand 21
percent, respectively. The nine-month period ended September 30, 2020 was impacted by the same items
noted above. Additionally,the nine-monthsended September30, 2020 wasimpacted by the gain on
disposition recognized forour Australia-West assets of $587 million with an associated tax benefit of $10
million, the de-recognition of $92 million of deferred tax assets recorded asincome tax expense asa result of
this divestiture, and a $48 million refund from the Alberta Tax and Revenue Administration. The nine-month
period ended September 30,2019 was impacted by the same items noted above in addition to a benefit of $262
million related to the recognition of a U.S. capitalloss benefit from our U.K. entity disposition.

As aresult of the COVID-19 pandemic and the resultingeconomic uncertainty, many countries in which we
operate, including Australia, Canada, Norway and the U.S., have enacted responsive tax legislation. During
the second quarter, Norway enacted legislation to accelerate the recovery of capitalexpendituresandallow
immediate monetization of tax losses. As a result, in the second quarterof 2020, we recorded an increase to
our netdeferred tax liability of $120 million and a decrease to our accrued incom e and othertaxes liability of
$124 million. Legislation in otherjurisdictions did not have a materialimpact to ConocoPhillips.
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During the three- and nine-month periodsended September 30,2020, ourvaluation allowance increased by
$33 million and $264 million, respectively. The changeto our U.S. valuation allowance forboth periods
relates primarily to the fair value measurement of our Cenovus Energy common sharesand our expectation of
thetax impact related to incremental capitalgainsand losses.

Note 22—Announced Acquisition of Concho Resources Inc.

On October 19, 2020, we announced a definitive agreement (the Merger Agreement) to acquire Concho
Resources Inc. (Concho)in anall-stock transaction valued at $9.7 billion based upon closing share prices on
October 16,2020. Under the terms of the transaction, which hasbeen unanimously approved by the board of
directors of each company, each share of Concho common stock will be exchanged fora fixed ratio of 1.46
shares of ConocoPhillips common stock. We will also assume the debt balancesof Concho, which were
approximately $3.9 billion at September 30, 2020.

The transaction is anticipatedto close in the first quarterof 2021, subject to the approval of both
ConocoPhillips and Concho shareholders, regulatory clearance, and other customary closing conditions. If the
Merger Agreement is terminated under certain circumstances, we may be required to pay a termination fee of
$450 million, including if the proposed Merger is terminated because ourboard of directorshas changed its
recommendation in respect of the stockholder proposalrelatingto the Merger. Inaddition, we may be required
to reimburse Concho forits expensesin anamount equalto $142.5 million if the Merger Agreement is
terminated because of a failure of our stockholders to approve the stockholder proposal. See Item 1A. “Risk
Factors” for further discussion of risks related to the Concho acquisition.
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is the company s analysis of its financial performance and of
significant trends that may affect future performance. It should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and notes. It containsforward-looking statementsincluding, without limitation, statements relating
to the company’s plans, strategies, objectives, expectations and intentions that are made pursuant to the “safe
harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “believe,” “budget,” “continue,” “could,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,”

“seek,” “should,” “will,” “would,” “expect,” “objective,” * 7 “goal,” "

FIYs 2«

9« EIars b

‘projection,” “forecast,” “goal,” “guidance,’
“outlook,” “effort,” “target” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. The company does
not undertake to update, revise or correct any of the forward-looking information unless required to do so
underthe federal securities laws. Readersare cautioned that such forward-looking statements should be read
in conjunction with the company’s disclosures under the heading: “CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR THE
PURPOSES OF THE ‘SAFE HARBOR’ PROVISIONS OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION
REFORM ACT OF 1995, ” beginning on page 57.

The terms “earnings” and “loss” asused in Management’s Discussion and Analysis refer to net income (loss)
attributable to ConocoPhillips.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT AND EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

ConocoPhillips is an independent E&P company with operations andactivities in 15 countries. Our diverse,
low cost of supply portfolio includes resource-rich unconventional playsin North America; conventional
assetsin North America, Europe and Asia; LNG developments; oil sandsassetsin Canada; and an inventory of
global conventionaland unconventional exploration prospects. At September30, 2020, we employed
approximately 9,800 people worldwide and had totalassets of $63 billion.

Announced Acquisition of Concho Resources Inc. and Paris-Aligned Climate Risk Strategy

On October 19, 2020, we announced entry into a definitive agreement to acquire Concho Resources Inc.
(Concho)in anall-stock transaction valued at $9.7 billion based upon closing share prices on October 16,
2020. Under the terms of the transaction, each outstanding share of common stock of Concho will be
converted into the right to receive 1.46 shares of ConocoPhillips common stock. We will also assume the debt
balancesof Concho, which were approximately $3.9 billion at September 30,2020. The combined companies
are expected to capture $500 million of annualcostand capital savings by 2022, which would be sourced from
lower general and administrative costsand a reduction in our future globalnew ventures exploration program.
The transaction is anticipatedto close in the first quarterof 2021, subject to the approval of both
ConocoPhillips and Concho shareholders, regulatory clearance, and the satisfaction orwaiver of other
customary closingconditions. See Item 1A. “Risk Factors” for further discussion of risks related to the
Conchoacquisition.

We also announced the adoption of a Paris-aligned climate risk framework aspart of our continued
commitmentto ESGexcellence. This comprehensive climate risk strategy should enable usto sustainably
meet global energy demand while delivering competitive returns through the energy transition. We haveseta
target to reduce our gross operated (scope 1 and 2) emissions intensity by 35 to 45 percent from 2016 levels by
2030, with an ambition to achieve net zero by 2050 for operated emissions. We are advocating forreduction
of scope 3 end-use emissions intensity through our support fora U.S. carbon price and reaffirmed our
commitmentto the Climate Leadership Council. We have joined the World Bank Flaring Initiative to work
towards zero routine flaring of gasby 2030. We are committed to take ESG leadership to the next level asthe
first U.S.-based oil and gascompany to adopt a Paris-aligned climate risk strategy.
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Overview

The energy landscape changed dramatically in 2020 with simultaneous demand and supply shocks that drove
the industry into a severe downturn. The demand shock was triggered by COVID-19, which wasdeclared a
global pandemic and caused unprecedented socialand economic consequences. Mitigation effortsto stop the
spread of this contagious disease included stay-at-home ordersand business closures that caused sharp
contractions in economic activity worldwide. The supply shock wastriggered by disagreements between
OPEC and Russia, beginning in early March, which resulted in significant supply coming onto the marketand
anoil price war. These dualdemand andsupply shocks caused oil prices to collapse aswe exited the first
quarter.

As we entered the second quarter, predictions of COVID-19 driven global oil demand losses intensified, with
forecasts of unprecedented demand declines. Based on these forecasts, OPEC plus nations held an emergency
meeting, and in April they announced a coordinated production cut that was unprecedented in both its
magnitude and duration. The OPEC plus agreement spansfrom May 2020 until April 2022, with the volume
of production cutseasing overtime. Additionally, non-OPEC plus countries, including the U.S., Canada,
Brazil and other G-20 countries, announced organic reductions to production through the release of drilling
rigs, frac crews, normalfield decline and curtailments. Despite these planned production decreases, the supply
cutswere nottimely enough to overcome significant demand decline. Futures prices for April WTI closed
under$20 a barrel for the first time since 2001, followed by May WTI settling below zero on the day before
futures contracts expiry, asholders of May futures contracts struggled to exit positions and avoid taking
physicaldelivery. As storage constraintsapproached, spot pricesin April for certain North American
landlocked grades of crude oil were in the single digits or even negative forparticularly remote or low-grade
crudes, while waterborne priced crudessuch asBrentsold ata relative advantage. The extreme volatility
experienced in the first half of the yearsettled down in the third quarter, with crude oil prices stabilizing
around $40 perbarrel.

Since the start of the severe downturn, we have closely monitored the market andtaken prudent actionsin
response to this situation. We entered the yearin a position of relative strength, with cash and cash equivalents
of more than $5 billion, short-term investments of $3 billion, and an undrawn credit facility of $6 billion,
totalingapproximately $14 billion in available liquidity. Additionally, we had severalentity and asset sales
agreementsin place, which generated $1.3 billion in proceeds from dispositions during the first nine-months of
2020. For more information about the sales of our Australia-West and non-core Lower 48 assets, see Note 4—
Asset Acquisitions and Dispositions in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Thisrelative
advantage allowed usto be measured in our response to the sudden change in business environment.

In March,we announced aninitial set of actionsto addressthe downturn and followed up with additional
actionsin April. The combined announcements reflected a reduction in our 2020 operatingplan capital of $2.3
billion, a reduction to our operating costs of $600 million and suspension of ourshare repurchase program.
These actionswill decrease uses of cash by approximately $5 billion in 2020. We also established a
framework forevaluatingand implementing economic production curtailments considering the weakness in oil
prices during the second quarter of 2020, which resulted in takingan additionalsignificant step of voluntarily
curtailing production, predominantly from operated North American assets. Due to our strong balance sheet,
we were in anadvantaged position to forgo some production and cash flow in anticipation of receiving higher
cash flows for those volumes in the future.

Inthe second quarter, we curtailed production by an estimated 225 MBOED, with 145 MBOED of the
curtailments from the Lower 48,40 MBOED from Alaska and 30 MBOED from our Surmont operation in
Canada. Theremainder of the second-quarter curtailments were primarily in Malaysia. Otherindustry
operatorsalso cut production and development plansand aswe progressed through the second quarter, stay-at-
home restrictions eased, which partially restored lost demand,and WTI and Brent prices exited the second
quarteraround $40 perbarrel. Based on oureconomic criteria, we began restoring production from voluntary
curtailmentsin July, and with oil stabilizing around $40 perbarrel, we ended our curtailment program during
the third quarter. Curtailmentsin the third quarteraveraged approximately 90 MBOED, with 65 MBOED
attributable to the Lower 48 and 15 MBOED to Surmont.
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In August 2020, we completed the agreement to acquire additional Montney acreage for cash consideration of
approximately $382 million, subject to customary post-closingadjustments. As part of the agreement, we
assumed approximately $31 million in financingobligations forassociated partially owned infrastructure. This
acquisition consisted primarily of undeveloped propertiesand included 140,000 net acres in the liquids-rich
Inga Fireweed asset Montney zone, which is directly adjacent to ourexisting Montney position. We now have
a Montney acreage position of 295,000 net acres with a 100 percent working interest.

On September 30,2020, we announced our intent to resume share repurchases; however, we recently
announced the pendingacquisition of Concho andour suspension of share repurchases untilafterthe
transaction closes. We ended the third quarter with over $12 billion of liquidity, comprised of $2.5 billion in
cash and cash equivalents, $4.0 billion in short-term investments, and available borrowings under our credit
facility of $5.7 billion. On October 9, 2020, we announced an increase to ourquarterly dividend from 42 cents
per shareto 43 cents per share. Thedividend is payable on December1,2020 to shareholders of record as of
October 19,2020.

Our expectation is that commodity priceswill remain cyclical and volatile, and a successfulbusiness strategy
in the E&P industry must be resilient in lower price environments, atthe same time retaining upside during
periods of higher prices. While we are notimpervious to current market conditions, our decisive actionsover
the last severalyears of focusing on free cash flow generation, high-grading our asset base, lowering the cost
of supply of ourinvestment resource portfolio, and strengthening our balance sheet have putusina strong
relative position compared to ourindependent E&P peers. Although recent prices have been volatile, we
remain committed to our core value proposition principles, namely, to focuson financial returns, maintain a
strong balance sheet, deliver compelling returns of capital,and maintain disciplined capitalinvestments.

Our workforce and operations have adjusted to mitigate the impacts of the COVID-19 global pandemic. We
have operations in remote areas with confined spaces, such as offshore platforms, the North Slope of Alaska,
Curtis Island in Australia, western Canada and Indonesia, where viruses could rapidly spread. Personnel are
asked to perform a self-assessment forsymptomsof illness each day and, when appropriate, are subject to
more restrictive measures travelingto and working on location. Staffinglevels in certain operatinglocations
have been reduced to minimize health risk exposure and increase social distancing. A portion of ouroffice
staff have continued to work successfully remotely, with officesaround the world carefully designing and
executinga flexible, phased reentry, following national, state and localguidelines. These mitigation measures
have thusfarbeen effective at reducing business operation disruptions. Workforce health and safetyremains
the overriding driver forour actionsand we have demonstrated ourability to adapt to local conditions as
warranted.

The marketingand supply chain side of our business hasalso adapted in response to COVID-19. Our
commercial organization managed transportation commitments duringour voluntary curtailment program.
Our supply chain function is proactively working with vendors to ensure the continuity of our business
operations, monitor distressed service and materials providers, capture deflation opportunities, and pursue cost
reduction efforts.

Operationally, we remain focused on safely executingthe business. Inthe third quarterof 2020, production of
1,067 MBOED generated cash provided by operatingactivities of $0.9 billion. We invested $1.1 billion into
the business in the form of capitalexpenditures, including $0.4 billion of acquisition capital,and paid
dividendsto shareholders of $0.5 billion. Production decreased 299 MBOED or 22 percent in the third quarter
of 2020, compared to the third quarter of 2019. Adjusting forestimated curtailments of approximately 90
MBOED, closed acquisitions and dispositions and Libya, third quarter 2020 production would have been 1,155
MBOED, a decrease of 46 MBOED or 4 percent compared with the third quarterof 2019. This decrease was
primarily due to normalfield decline, partly offset by new wells online in the Lower 48, Canadaand China.
Production from Libya averaged 1 MBOED asit remained in force majeure during the third quarter. Force
majeure was lifted in Octoberand plansto resume production and exportsare ongoing.
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Business Environment

Commodity prices are the most significant factorimpactingour profitability and related reinvestment of
operating cash flows into ourbusiness. Amongother dynamicsthatcould influence world energy marketsand
commodity prices are global economic health, supply or demand disruptions or fears thereof caused by civil
unrest, global pandemics, military conflicts, actions taken by OPEC plus and other major oil producing
countries, environmental laws, tax regulations, governmental policies and weather-related disruptions. Our
strategy is to create value through price cycles by delivering on the financialand operational priorities that
underpin our value proposition.

Our earnings and operating cash flows generally correlate with price levels forcrude oil and natural gas, which
are subject to factors externalto the company and over which we have no control. The following graph depicts
thetrend in average benchmark prices for WTI crude oil, Brent crude oil and Henry Hub natural gas:
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Brent crude oil prices averaged $43.00 perbarrelin the third quarter of 2020, a decrease of 31 percent
compared with $61.94 perbarrel in the third quarterof 2019. WTI at Cushingcrude oil prices averaged
$40.93 perbarrel in the third quarter of 2020, a decrease of 27 percent compared with $56.44 perbarrel in the
third quarterof 2019. Qil prices are lower due to high inventory levels and contractions in economic activity
dueto COVID-19 restrictions.

Henry Hub naturalgasprices averaged $1.98 per MMBTU in the third quarterof 2020, a decrease of 11
percent compared with $2.23 perMMBTU in the third quarterof 2019. Current period Henry Hub prices are
depressed due to high storage levels and seasonally weak demand.

Our realized bitumen price averaged $15.87 perbarrelin the third quarter of 2020, a decrease of 51 percent
compared with $32.54 perbarrel in the third quarterof 2019. The decrease in the third quarter of 2020 was
driven by a lower blend price for Surmont sales, largely attributed to a weaker WTI price and a narrower
spread between the local market and U.S. sales points, which challenged both pipeline and rail economics. In
addition, we incurred unutilized transportation costs which negatively impacted our realized bitumen price.

Our totalaverage realized price was$30.94 per BOE in the third quarterof 2020, compared with $47.07 per
BOE in the third quarterof 2019.
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Key Operating and Financial Summary
Significant items during the third quarter of 2020 and recent announcements included the following:

e Produced 1,066 MBOED excluding Libya in the third quarter; curtailed approximately 90 MBOED.

e Distributed $0.5 billion in dividends and announced an increase to the quarterly dividend.

e Ended the quarterwith cash, cash equivalentsand restricted cash totaling$2.8 billion and short-term
investments of $4.0 billion.

e As partofacommitmentto ESG excellence, announced adoption of a Paris-aligned climate risk
framework to achieve net zero operated emissions by 2050.

e Completed bolt-on acquisition of adjacent acreage in the liquids-rich Montney in Canadafor$0.4
billion.

e Announcedagreementto acquire Concho inan all-stock transaction for1.46 shares of ConocoPhillips
common stock pershare of Concho.

Outlook

Capital and Production

In February 2020, we announced 2020 operating plan capital of $6.5 billion to $6.7 billion. In response to the
oil market downturn earlier this year, we announced capital expenditure reductions totaling $2.3 billion. Full
year2020 operatingplan capital is now expected to be $4.3 billion. This does not include approximately $0.5
billion of capital foracquisitions completed duringthe year, of which $0.4 billion was forbolt-onacreage in
the liquids rich area of the Montney.

Fourth quarter 2020 production isexpected to be 1,125t0 1,165 MBOED, resulting in anticipated full-year
2020 production of 1,115t0 1,125 MBOED. This outlook excludes Libya.

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization

DD&A expense was $4.0 billion in the nine-month period of 2020. Proved reserves estimateswere updated in
the interim periods of 2020 utilizing trailing twelve-month oil and gas prices, which increased DD&A expense
in the nine-month period of 2020 by approximately $195 million before-tax. If oil and gas prices persist at
depressed levels, our reserve estimates may decrease further, which could incrementally increase the rate used
to determine DD&A expense on our unit-of-production method properties.

Impairments
In October 2020, we announced an agreement to acquire Concho, thereby significantly expandingour

unconventional acreage position in the Permian Basin. The planned addition of unproved properties in the
Delaware and Midland Basins would reduce our need for resource additions through organic exploration,and
we expect to decrease capitalallocated to our global new ventures exploration program going forward. An
evaluation of ourexploration program is ongoing and may result in future impairments. This transaction is
anticipated to close in the first quarterof 2021, subject to the approval of both ConocoPhillips and Concho
shareholders, regulatory clearance, and other customary closing conditions.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Unless otherwise indicated, discussion of results for the three-and nine-month periods ended September 30,
2020, is based ona comparison with the corresponding periods of 2019.

Effective with the third quarter of 2020, we have restructured our segmentsto align with changesto our
internal organization. The Middle East business was realigned fromthe Asia Pacificand Middle East segment
tothe Europe and North Africa segment. The segments have been renamed the Asia Pacific segmentand the
Europe, Middle East and North Africa segment. We have revised segment information disclosuresand
segment performance metrics presented within our results of operationsfor the currentand prior comparative
periods.

Consolidated Results
A summary of the company's net income (loss) attributable to ConocoPhillips by business segment follows:
Millions of Dollars
Three MonthsEnded  Nine MonthsEnded

September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Alaska $ (16) 306 (76) 1,152
Lower 48 (78) 26 (880) 425
Canada (75) 51 (270) 273
Europe, Middle Eastand North Africa 92 2,171 318 3,050
Asia Pacific 25 443 945 1,220
Other International (8) 73 14 285
Corporate and Other (390) (14) (1,980) 64
Net income (loss) attributable to ConocoPhillips $ (450) 3,056 (1,929) 6,469

Net income (loss) attributable to ConocoPhillipsin the third quarterof 2020 decreased $3,506 million.
Earnings were negatively impacted by:

e The absenceofa $1.8 billion after-taxgain associatedwith the completion of the sale of two
ConocoPhillips U.K. subsidiaries.

e Lower realized commodity prices.

o Lower salesvolumes, primarily due to normalfield decline, production curtailmentsacross our North
American operated assetsand the divestiture of our U.K. assetsin the third quarterof 2019 and
Australia-West assets in the second quarterof 2020.

e A $162million after-tax unrealized loss on our Cenovus Energy (CVE) common shares in the third
quarterof 2020, ascompared toa $116 million after-tax gain on those shares in the third quarter of
2019.

e Lower equity in earnings of affiliates, primarily due to lower LNG sales prices.

e The absence of a $164 million income tax benefit related to deepwater incentive tax credits recognized
for Malaysia Block G.

37



Third quarter 2020 netincome decreases were partly offset by:

e Lower production and operatingexpenses, primarily due to the absence of costsrelated to our U.K.
and Australia-West divestitures and decreased wellwork and transportation costs resulting from
production curtailmentsacross our North American operated assets.

e Lower exploration expenses, primarily due to the absence of $186 million after-tax of leasehold
impairmentand dry hole costsassociated with our decision to discontinue exploration activitiesin the
Central Louisiana Austin Chalk trend.

e Lower DD&A, primarily dueto lower volumes resulting from production curtailmentsand our
Australia-West divestiture, partly offset by higher DD&A ratesdue to price-related downward reserve
revisions.

Net income (loss) attributable to ConocoPhillipsin the nine-month period ended September 30,2020,
decreased $8,398 million. Earnings were negatively impacted by:

e Lower realized commodity prices.

o Lower salesvolumes, primarily due to normalfield decline, production curtailmentsacross our North
American operated assetsand the divestiture of our U.K. assetsin the third quarterof 2019 and our
Australia-West assets in the second quarterof 2020.

e The absenceofa $2.1 billion after-taxgain associatedwith the completion of the sale of two
ConocoPhillips U.K. subsidiaries.

e A $1.3hbillion after-tax unrealized loss on our CVE common sharesin the nine-month period of 2020,
ascompared toa $0.5 billion after-taxgain on those sharesin the nine-month period of 2019.

e Higher impairmentsof approximately $400 million after-tax, primarily related to non-core gas assets
in our Lower 48 segment.

e The absence of otherincome of $317 million after-tax related to our settlement agreement with
PDVSA.

o Lower equity in earnings of affiliates, primarily due to lower LNG sales prices, partly offset by the
absence of $120 million after-tax of impairmentsto equity method investments.

The decreasesin earningsin the nine-month period ended September 30,2020, were partly offset by:

o A $597 million after-tax gain on dispositions related to our Australia-West divestiture.

o Lower production and operatingexpenses, primarily due to decreased wellwork and transportation
costs resulting from production curtailmentsacross our North American operated assetsaswell asthe
absence of costsrelated to our U.K. and Australia-West divestitures.

o Lower DD&A expenses, primarily dueto lower volumesrelated to production curtailmentsand our
Australia-West and U.K. divestitures, partly offset by higher DD&A ratesdue to price-related
downward reserve revisions.

e Lower exploration expenses, primarily due to the absence of $194 million after-tax of leasehold
impairmentand dry hole costsassociated with our decision to discontinue exploration activitiesin the
Central Louisiana Austin Chalk trend.

See the “Segment Results” section foradditionalinformation.
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Income Statement Analysis

Sales and otheroperatingrevenues forthe three- and nine-month periods of 2020 decreased $3,370 million and
$11,566 million, respectively, mainly due to lower realized commodity pricesand lower sales volumes. Sales
volumes decreased due to normalfield decline, production curtailments from our North American operated
assetsand the divestiture of our U.K. assetsin the third quarterof 2019 and our Australia-West assets in the
second quarterof 2020.

Equity in earnings of affiliates forthe three- and nine-month periods of 2020 decreased $255 million and $305
million, respectively, primarily due to lower earnings from QG3 and APLNG asa result of lower LNG sales
prices. Partly offsettingthis decrease wasthe absence of impairments related to equity method investmentsin
our Lower 48 segment of $155 million in the nine-month period of 2019.

Gain on dispositions for the three- and nine-month periods of 2020 decreased $1,788 millionand $1,333
million, respectively, primarily dueto the absence of a $1.8 billion before-tax gain associated with the
completion of the sale of two ConocoPhillips U.K. subsidiaries. Partly offsettingthe decrease in the nine-
month period of 2020, wasa $587 million before-tax gain associatedwith our Australia-West divestiture. For
more information related to our Australia-West divestiture, see Note 4—Asset Acquisitions and Dispositions
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other income (loss) forthe third quarter of 2020 decreased $300 million, primarily due to an unrealized loss of
$162 million before-tax on our CVE common sharesin the third quarterof 2020,and the absence ofa $116
million before-tax gain on those sharesin the third quarterof 2019. Other income (loss) forthe nine-month
period of 2020 decreased $2,119 million, primarily due to an unrealized loss of $1,302 million before-tax on
our CVE common sharesin the nine-month period of 2020, and the absence of a $489 million before-tax gain
onthosesharesin the nine-month period of 2019. Additionally, otherincome (loss) in the nine-month period
of 2020 decreased due to the absence of $325 million before-tax related to our settlement agreement with
PDVSA.

For discussion of our Cenovus Energy shares, see Note 6—Investment in Cenovus Energy, in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. For discussion of our PDVSA settlement, see Note 12—Contingencies
and Commitments, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Purchased commodities forthe three- and nine-month periods of 2020 decreased $871 million and $3,429
million, respectively, primarily due to lower naturalgasand crude oil prices and lower crude oil and natural
gas volumespurchased.

Production and operatingexpenses forthe three-and nine-month periods of 2020 decreased $368 million and
$837 million, respectively, primarily due to decreased wellwork and transportation costsassociated with
production curtailmentsacross our North American operated assetsaswell asthe absence of costsrelated to
our U.K. and Australia-West divestitures. Additionally, in the nine-month period of 2020, production and
operatingexpensesdecreased due to lower legal accrualsin our Lower 48 and Other International segments.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $120million in the nine-month period of 2020,
primarily due to lower costs associated with compensation and benefits, including mark to market impacts of
certain key employee compensation programs.

Exploration expenses forthe three- and nine-month periods of 2020 decreased $235 million and $182 million,
respectively, primarily due to the absence of a $141 million before-tax leasehold impairment expense due to
our decision to discontinue exploration activities in the Central Louisiana Austin Chalk trend and lower dry
hole costsin the Lower 48, primarily related to this play; partly offset by higher dry hole expensesin Alaska.
Inaddition to the items detailed above, in the nine-month period of 2020, the decrease in exploration expenses
were partly offset by an unproved property impairment and dry hole expenses related to the Kamunsu East
Field in Malaysia thatisno longer in our development plansand charges related to the early termination of the
Alaska winter exploration program.
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DD&A for the three- and nine-month periods of 2020 decreased $155 million and $622 million, respectively,
mainly due to lower production volumes because of production curtailmentsandthe divestiture of our
Australia-West asset, partly offset by higher DD&A ratesdue to price-related downward reserve revisions. In
addition to the items detailed above, DD&A in the nine-month period of 2020 decreased due to our U.K.
divestiture, which met held-for-sale statusin the second quarterof 2019. For more information regardingthe
Australia-West divestiture, see Note 4—Asset Acquisitions and Dispositions in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Impairments increased $495 million in the nine-month period of 2020, primarily duetoa $511 million before-
tax impairment of certain non-core gasassets in our Lower 48 segment because of a significant decrease in the
outlook fornaturalgas prices. See Note 8—Impairmentsin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
for additionalinformation.

Taxesotherthanincome taxes forthe three-and nine-month periods of 2020 decreased $58 million and $136
million, respectively, primarily due to lower commodity pricesand sales volumes.

Foreign currency transaction (gain) loss decreased $107 million in the nine-month period of 2020, resulting
from gains recognized from foreign currency derivativesand otherforeign currency remeasurements. See
Note 13—Derivative and Financial Instruments in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for
additionalinformation.

See Note 21—Income Taxes, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, forinformation regarding our
income tax provision (benefit) and effective tax rate.
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Summary Operating Statistics

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Average Net Production
Crude oil (MBD)

Consolidated operations 535 696 546 696

Equity affiliates 13 14 13 13

Totalcrude oil 548 710 559 709
Naturalgas liquids (MBD)

Consolidated operations 89 106 97 106

Equity affiliates 8 8 7 8

Totalnaturalgas liquids 97 114 104 114
Bitumen (MBD) 49 63 50 59
Naturalgas (MMCFD)

Consolidated operations 1,201 1,795 1,353 1,783

Equity affiliates 1,034 1,076 1,042 1,043

Totalnaturalgas* 2,235 2,871 2,395 2,826
Total Production (MBOED) 1,067 1,366 1,112 1,353

Dollars Per Unit

Average Sales Prices
Crude oil (per bbl)

Consolidated operations $ 39.49 59.56 39.04 61.26
Equity affiliates 37.56 59.91 38.22 61.23
Totalcrude oil 39.45 59.57 39.02 61.26

Naturalgas liquids (per bbl)

Consolidated operations 13.73 14.33 11.72 18.90

Equity affiliates 30.21 30.18 31.65 36.49

Totalnaturalgas liguids 15.29 15.59 13.45 20.24
Bitumen (per bbl) 15.87 32.54 2.90 34.11
Naturalgas (per MCF)

Consolidated operations 2.77 3.73 3.07 4.37

Equity affiliates 2.61 6.40 3.98 6.48

Totalnaturalgas 2.70 4.74 3.47 5.17

Millions of Dollars

Exploration Expenses
General administrative, geologicaland geophysical,

lease rental, and other $ 81 67 296 231
Leasehold impairment - 154 31 196
Dry holes 44 139 83 165

$ 125 360 410 592

*Represents quantities available for sale and excludes gas equivalent of natural gas liquids included above.
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We explore for, produce, transport and market crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas, LNG and NGLs on a worldwide
basis. At September30,2020, ouroperationswere producingin the U.S., Norway, Canada, Australia,
Indonesia, China, Malaysia, Qatarand Libya.

Totalproduction decreased 299 MBOED or 22 percent in the third quarterof 2020, primarily due to:

e Normalfield decline.

o The divestiture of our U.K. assetsin the third quarterof 2019, our Australia -West assets in the second
quarterof 2020, and non-core Lower 48 assets in the first quarterof 2020.

e Production curtailments, primarily from our North American operated assets.

e Less production in Libya due to the forced shutdown of the Es Sider export terminaland othereastern
exportterminalsaftera period of civil unrest.

The decrease in third quarter 2020 production was partly offset by:
o New wells online in the Lower 48, Canadaand China.
Totalproduction decreased 241 MBOED or 18 percent in the nine-month period of 2020, primarily due to:

o Normalfield decline.

e Production curtailments, primarily from our North American operated assetsand Malaysia.

e The divestiture of our U.K. assetsin thethird quarterof 2019, our Australia -West assets in the second
quarterof 2020, and non-core Lower 48 assets in the first quarterof 2020.

e Lower production in Libya due to the forced shutdown of the Es Sider export terminaland other
eastern exportterminals aftera period of civil unrest in the first quarterof 2020.

The decrease in production duringthe nine-month period of 2020 was partly offset by:

o New wells online in the Lower 48, Canada, Norway, Alaska and China.

Production excluding Libya was 1,066 MBOED in the third quarter of 2020, a decrease of 256 MBOED
compared with the same period 0f 2019. Adjusting for estimated curtailments of approximately 90 MBOED,
closed acquisitions and dispositions and Libya, third quarter 2020 production would have been 1,155 MBOED,
a decrease of 46 MBOED or 4 percent compared with the third quarterof 2019. This decrease was primarily
dueto normalfield decline, partly offset by new wells online in the Lower 48, Canadaand China. Production
from Libya averaged 1 MBOED asit remained in force majeure during the third quarter.

Production excluding Libya was 1,108 MBOED in the nine-month period of 2020, a decrease of 202 MBOED
compared with the same period of 2019. Adjusting for estimated curtailments of approximately 105 MBOED,
closed acquisitions and dispositions and Libya, nine-month period 2020 production would have been 1,186
MBOED, an increase of 6 MBOED compared with the same period a yearago. This increase was primarily
due to new wells online in the Lower 48, Canada, Norway, Alaska,and China, partly offset by normal field
decline. Production from Libya averaged 4 MBOED as it hasbeen in force majeure for most of the year.
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Segment Results

Alaska
Three MonthsEnded  Nine MonthsEnded
September 30 September 30

2020 2019 2020 2019
Net income (loss) attributable to ConocoPhillips (M M) 3 (16) 306 (76) 1,152
Average Net Production
Crude oil (MBD) 184 190 179 200
Naturalgas liquids (MBD) 14 11 15 15
Naturalgas (MMCED) 14 6 10 7
Total Production (MBOED) 201 202 195 216
Average Sales Prices
Crude oil ($ per bbl) $ 4088 62.78 41.92 64.34
Naturalgas ($ per MCF) 2.48 3.01 271 3.23

The Alaska segment primarily explores for, produces, transportsand markets crude oil, NGLs and naturalgas.
As of September 30,2020, Alaska contributed 28 percent of our consolidated liquids production and less than
1 percentof our consolidated natural gas production.

Earnings from Alaska decreased $322 million in the third quarter of 2020, primarily driven by lower realized
crude oil prices and higher DD&A expense due to increased DD&A rates from price-related downward reserve
revisions. Partly offsettingthe decrease in earningswere lower production and operatingexpenses, primarily
atthe Greater Prudhoe Area.

Earnings from Alaska decreased $1,228 million in the nine-month period of 2020, primarily driven by lower
realized crude oil prices and lower sales volumesdue to production curtailmentsat ouroperated assetson the
North Slope—the Greater Kuparuk Area (GKA) and Western North Slope (WNS). Partly offsettingthe
earnings decrease was lower production and operating expenses primarily associated with lower transportation
and terminaling costs aswell aslower wellwork acrossour assets.

Average production decreased 1 MBOED in the third quarter of 2020, primarily due to normalfield decline,
partly offset by lower planned downtime andnewwells online. Average production decreased 21 MBOED in
the nine-month period of 2020, primarily due to normalfield decline and curtailmentsat ouroperated assetson
the North Slope—GKA and WNS, partly offset by new wells online.

Curtailment Update
Based on our economic criteria, we restored curtailed production in Alaska during July.
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Lower 48

Three MonthsEnded  Nine MonthsEnded
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips (SMM) $ (78) 26 (880) 425
Average Net Production

Crude oil (MBD) 197 277 211 264
Naturalgas liquids (MBD) 68 84 74 80
Naturalgas (MMCFD) 566 649 577 604
Total Production (MBOED) 359 469 381 444
Average Sales Prices

Crude oil ($ per bbl) $ 3643 54.38 34.02 55.63
Naturalgas liquids ($ per bbl) 1351 13.04 10.96 17.03
Naturalgas ($ per MCF) 1.63 1.80 1.45 2.19

The Lower 48 segment consists of operations located inthe U.S. Lower 48 states,aswell asproducing
properties in the Gulf of Mexico. As of September 30,2020, the Lower 48 contributed 41 percent of our
consolidated liquids production and 43 percent of our consolidated natural gas production.

Earnings from the Lower 48 decreased $104 million in the third quarterof 2020, primarily due to lower sales
volumes due to normalfield decline and production curtailmentsand lower realized crude oil prices. Partly
offsettingthis decrease in earnings were lower exploration expenses due to the absence of $186 million after-
tax of leasehold impairment anddry hole costs associated with our decision to discontinue exploration
activities in the Central Louisiana Austin Chalk trend; lower DD&A expense due to lower volumes, partly
offset by higher DD&A ratesdue to price-related reserve revisions; and higher otherincome due to a favorable
$70 million after-tax settlement.

Earnings from the Lower 48 decreased $1,305 million in the nine-month period of 2020, primarily due to
lower realized crude oil, NGL and naturalgas prices; lower crude oil sales volumes dueto normalfield decline
and production curtailments; anda $399 million after-tax impairment related to certain non-core gasassetsin
the Wind River Basin operationsarea. Partly offsettingthis decrease in earnings was the absence of $194
million after-tax of leasehold impairmentand dry hole costs associated with our decision to discontinue
exploration activitiesin the Central Louisiana Austin Chalk trend; lower DD&A expense due to lower
volumes, partly offset by higher DD&A ratesdue to price-related reserve revisions; and the absence of $120
million of impairmentsin equity method investments. See Note 8—Impairmentsand Note 14—Fair Value
Measurement in the Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements, foradditional information related to the Wind
River Basin operationsarea impairment.

Totalaverage production decreased 110 MBOED and 63 MBOED in the three- and nine-month periods of
2020, respectively, primarily due to normalfield decline and production curtailments. Partly offsettingthe
production decrease was new production from unconventional assets in the Eagle Ford, Permian and Bakken.

Curtailment Update

The third quarter 2020 production impact from curtailmentsin the Lower 48 was estimated to be 65 MBOED.
Based on our economic criteria, we began restoring curtailed volumesin July and ended our curtailment
program by the end of the third quarter.
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Canada

Three MonthsEnded  Nine MonthsEnded
September 30 September 30
2020* 2019** 2020*  2019**

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips (SMM) $ (75) 51 (270) 273
Average Net Production

Crude oil (MBD) 6 1 4 1
Naturalgas liquids (MBD) 2 - 2 -
Bitumen (MBD) 49 63 50 59
Naturalgas (MMCFD) 43 9 35 8
Total Production (MBOED) 64 66 62 62
Average Sales Prices

Crude oil ($ per bbl) $ 2516 - 19.84 -
Naturalgas liquids ($ per bbl) 5.99 - 3.60 -
Bitumen ($ per bbl) 15.87 32.54 2.90 34.11
Naturalgas ($ per MCF) 0.71 - 0.91 -

*Average sales prices include unutilized transportation costs.

**Average prices for sales of bitumen excludes additional value realized from the purchase and sale of third-party volumes for optimization of
our pipeline capacity between Canada and the U.S. Gulf Coast.

Our Canadian operations mainly consist of an oil sandsdevelopment in the Atha basca Region of northeastern
Alberta and a liquids-rich unconventional play in western Canada. Asof September 30,2020, Canada
contributed 8 percent of our consolidated liquids production and 3 percent of our consolidated natural gas
production.

Earnings from Canadadecreased $126 million and $543 million, respectively, in the three- and nine-month
periods of 2020, primarily due to lower bitumen and crude oil price realizations, lower sales volumes related to
production curtailments, higher DD&A expense associated with increased production from the Montneyand
price-related reserve revisions, and lower gain on dispositions related to the absence of contingent payments.
Partly offsettingthe decreasesin earningsin both periodswere higher sales volumes from newwells online at
Montney.

Totalaverage production decreased 2 MBOED in the third quarter of 2020, primarily due to production
curtailmentsand a planned turnaround at Surmont, partly offset by newwells online at Montney. Total
average production was flat in the nine-month period of 2020, with production decreases from curtailmentsat
Surmont offset by newwells online at Montney and lower planned downtime at Surmont.

Curtailment Update

The third quarter 2020 production impact from curtailments in Canadawas estimated to be 15 MBOED net.
Based on our economic criteria, we began to restore curtailed production at Surmont in July and ended our
voluntary curtailment program by the end of the third quarter.

Completed Acquisition

In August 2020, we completed the agreement to acquire additional Montney acreage for cash consideration of
approximately $382 million, subject to customary post-closingadjustments. As part of the agreement, we
assumed approximately $31 million in financingobligations forassociated partially owned infrastructure. This
acquisition consisted primarily of undeveloped propertiesand included 140,000 net acres in the liquids-rich
Inga Fireweed asset Montney zone, which is directly adjacent to ourexisting Montney position. We now have
a Montney acreage position of 295,000 net acres with a 100 percent working interest.
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Europe, Middle East and North Africa

Three MonthsEnded  Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2020 2019+ 2020 2019+

Net Income Attributable to ConocoPhillips (SMM) $ 92 2,171 318 3,050

Consolidated Operations
Average Net Production

Crude oil (MBD) 77 149 82 143
Naturalgas liquids (MBD) 5 7 5 7
Naturalgas (MMCFD) 256 473 276 531
Total Production (MBOED) 125 235 133 238
Average Sales Prices

Crude oil ($ per bbl) $ 4179 63.47 43.72 65.17
Naturalgas liquids ($ per bbl) 23.50 23.20 20.01 28.65
Naturalgas ($ per MCF) 2.40 3.60 2.85 498

*Prior periods have been updated to reflect the Middle East Business Unit moving from Asia Pacific to the Europe, Middle East and North
Africa segment. See Note 20—Segment Disclosures and Related Information in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.

The Europe, Middle East and North Africa segment consists of operations principally located in the Norwegian
sector of the North Sea and the Norwegian Sea, Qatar, Libya and commercialoperationsin the U.K. As of
September 30,2020, our Europe, Middle East and North Africa operations contributed 13 percent of our
consolidated liquids production and 20 percent of our consolidated natural gas production.

Earnings for Europe, Middle East and North Africa decreased by $2,079 million and $2,732 million in the
three- and nine-month periods of 2020, respectively, primarily due to impactsassociated with our U.K.
divestiture in 2019. We recorded a $1.8 billion and $2.1 billion after-tax gain in the three-and nine-month
periods of 2019, respectively, associated with the completion of the sale of two ConocoPhillips U.K.
subsidiaries. Inaddition tothe items detailed above, earnings in both periods decreased due to lower equity in
earnings of affiliates, primarily due to lower LNG sales prices; and lower realized crude oil prices in Norway.

Consolidated production decreased 110 MBOED and 105 MBOED in the three- and nine-month periods of
2020, respectively, primarily due to our U.K. disposition in the third quarterof 2019, lower production in
Libya due to a cessation of production following a period of civil unrestand normalfield decline. Inaddition
to the items detailed above, in the nine-month period of 2020, the production decrease was partly offset by new
wells online in Norway.

Force Majeure in Libya

Production ceased February 12,2020, due to a forced shutdown of the Es Sider export terminaland other
eastern export terminals aftera period of civil unrest. Force majeure was lifted on October 23,2020. Plans to
resume production and exportsare ongoing.
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Asia Pacific

Three MonthsEnded  Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2020 2019+ 2020 2019~

Net Income Attributable to ConocoPhillips (SMM) $ 25 443 945 1,220

Consolidated Operations
Average Net Production

Crude oil (MBD) 71 79 70 88
Naturalgas liquids (MBD) - 4 1 4
Naturalgas (MMCED) 322 658 455 633
Total Production (MBOED) 125 193 147 198
Average Sales Prices

Crude oil ($ per bbl) $ 42.79 62.01 42.94 64.75
Naturalgas liquids ($ per bbl) - 30.13 33.21 38.13
Naturalgas ($ per MCF) 5.33 5.78 542 6.01

*Prior periods have been updated to reflect the Middle East Business Unit moving to the Europe, Middle East and North Africa segment. See
Note 20—Segment Disclosures and Related Information in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

The Asia Pacific segment hasoperationsin China, Indonesia, Malaysia and Australia. As of September 30,
2020, Asia Pacific contributed 10 percent of our consolidated liquids production and 33 percent of our
consolidated naturalgas production.

Earnings decreased $418 million in the third quarterof 2020, mainly due to the sale of ourdisposed Australia-
West assets; the absence of a $164 million income tax benefit related to deepwater incentive tax credits from the
Malaysia Block G; and lower equity in earnings of affiliates, primarily due to lower LNG sales prices.

Earnings decreased $275 million in the nine-month period of 2020, primarily due to lower realized crude oil and
naturalgasprices; lower oil sales volumes, primarily related to curtailmentsin Malaysia; lowerequity in
earnings of affiliates, mainly due to lower LNG sales prices; and the absence of a $164 million income tax
benefit related to deepwater incentive tax credits from the Malaysia Block G. The decrease was partly offset by
a $597 million after-tax gain on disposition related to our Australia-West divestiture.

Consolidated production decreased 68 MBOED and 51 MBOED in the three- and nine-month periods of 2020,
primarily due to the divestiture of our Australia-West assets, normalfield decline, the expiration of the Panyu
production license in China and higher unplanned downtime due to the rupture of a third-party pipeline
impacting gas production from the Kebabangan Field in Malaysia. Partly offsetting these production decreases,
was new production from development activity at BohaiBay in China and Malaysia.

Asset Disposition

Inthe second quarter of 2020, we completed the divestiture of our Australia-West assetsand operations,and
based on an effective date of January 1,2019, we received proceeds of $765 million in May with an additional
$200 million due upon finalinvestment decision of the proposed Barossa development project. Production from
the beginning of the yearthrough the disposition date in May 2020 averaged 43 MBOED and proved reserves
associated with the disposed assetswas approximately 17 MMBOE at year-end 2019. Foradditionalinformation
related to this transaction, see Note 4—Asset Acquisitions and Dispositions.
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Other International

Three MonthsEnded  Nine MonthsEnded
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips (MM) $ (8) 73 14 285

The Other International segment consists of exploration and appraisal activitiesin Colombia and Argentina.

Earnings from our Other International operations decreased $81 million and $271 million in the three-and
nine-month periods of 2020, respectively. The decrease in earningswas primarily due to the absence of
recognizing $86 million and $317 million after-tax in otherincome from a settlement award with PDVSA
associated with prior operationsin Venezuela, in the three- and nine-month periods of 2019, respectively. See
Note 12—Contingenciesand Commitments in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, foradditional
information.
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Corporate and Other

Millions of Dollars
Three MonthsEnded  Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips

Net interest expense $ 179 (123) (508) (450)
Corporate generaland administrative expenses (50) (34) (90) (148)
Technology 8) 43 (16) 129
Other income (expense) (153) 100 (1,366) 533

$ (390) (14)  (1,980) 64

Net interest expense consists of interest and financingexpense, net of interestincome and capitalized interest.
Net interest expense increased by $56 million and $58 million in the three-and nine-month periods of 2020,
respectively, primarily due to lower interest income related to lower cash and cash equivalent balances and
higher interest expense.

Corporate G&A expensesinclude compensation programsand staff costs. These expenses increased by $16
million and decreased by $58 million in the three- and nine-month periods of 2020, respectively, primarily due
to mark to market adjustmentsassociated with certain compensation programs.

Technology includes our investment in new technologies or businesses, aswell as licensing revenues.
Activities are focused on both conventionaland tight oil reservoirs, shale gas, heavy oil, oil sands, enhanced
oil recovery, aswell asLNG. Earnings from Technology decreased by $51 million and $145 million in the
three-and nine-month periods of 2020, respectively, primarily due to lower licensing revenues.

Other income (expense) or “Other” includes certain corporate tax-related items, foreign currency transaction
gains and losses, environmental costs associated with sites no longer in operation, other costs not directly
associated with an operating segment, premiums incurred on the early retirement of debt, unrealized holding
gains or losses on equity securities, and pension settlement expense. “Other” decreased by $253 million in the
third quarterof 2020, primarily due to an unrealized loss of $162 million after-taxon our CVE common shares
in the third quarterof 2020, and the absence of a $116 million after-tax gain on those sharesin the third quarter
0f 2019. In the nine-month period of 2020, “Other” decreased by $1,899 million, primarily duetoan
unrealized loss of $1,302 million after-tax on our CVE common shares in the nine-month period of 2020, and
the absence of a $489 million after-tax gain on those shares in the nine-month period of 2019.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Financial Indicators
Millions of Dollars

September 30 December31

2020 2019

Short-term debt $ 482 105
Totaldebt 15,387 14,895
Totalequity 30,783 35,050
Percent of total debt to capital* 33 % 30
Percent of floating-rate debt to total debt 7 % 5

*Capital includes total debt and total equity.

To meet ourshort- and long-term liquidity requirements, we look to a variety of fundingsources, including
cash generated from operatingactivities, our commercial paperand credit facility programs, and ourability to
sell securities using our shelf registration statement. During the first nine monthsof 2020, the primary uses of
our available cash were $3,657 million to support ourongoing capitalexpendituresand investments program,
including the $382 million of cash used to acquire additional Montney acreage, $1,089 million for net
purchasesof investments, $726 million to repurchase common stock, and $1,367 million to pay dividends.
During the first nine months of 2020, ourcash, cash equivalents and restricted cash decreased by $2,566
million to $2,796 million.

We entered the yearwith a strong balance sheet including cash and cash equivalents of over $5 billion, short-
term investments of $3 billion, and an undrawn credit facility of $6 billion, totalingapproximately $14 billion
in available liquidity. This strong foundation allowed usto be measured in our response to the sudden change
in business environment aswe exited the first quarterof 2020. Inresponse to the oil market downturn earlier
this year,we announced the following capital, operatingcostand share repurchase reductions. We reduced our
2020 operatingplan capitalexpenditures by a total of $2.3 billion, or approximately thirty -five percent of the
original guidance. We suspended ourshare repurchase program, further reducing cash outlays by
approximately $2 billion. We also reduced ouroperating costs by approximately $0.6 billion, or roughly ten
percent of the original 2020 guidance. Collectively, these actionsrepresent a reduction in 2020 cash uses of
approximately $5 billion versus the original operatingplan.

Considering the weakness in oil prices during the second quarter of 2020, we established a framework for
evaluatingand implementingeconomic curtailments, which resulted in takingan additional significant step of
curtailing production, predominantly from operated North American assets. Due to our strong balance sheet,
we were in an advantaged position to forgo some production and cash flow in anticipation of receiving higher
cash flows for those volumes in the future. Based on our economic criteria, we began restoring production
from voluntary curtailments in July, and with oil stabilizing around $40 perbarrel, we ended ourcurtailment
program by the end of the third quarter.

At the end of the third quarter,we had cash and cash equivalents of $2.5 billion, short-term investments of
$4.0 billion, and available borrowing capacity under our credit facility of $5.7 billion, totalingover $12 billion
of liquidity. We believe current cash balancesand cash generated by operations, the recentadjustmentsto our
operatingplan, together with accessto externalsources of funds asdescribed below in the “Significant Sources
of Capital” section, will be sufficientto meet our fundingrequirementsin the near-and long-term, including
our capitalspendingprogram, dividend paymentsand required debt payments.
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Significant Sources of Capital

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operatingactivitieswas $3.1 billion forthe first nine monthsof 2020, compared with $8.1
billion forthe corresponding period of 2019. The decrease in cash provided by operatingactivitiesis primarily
dueto lower realized commodity prices, normalfield decline, production curtailments, the divestiture of our
U.K. and Australia-West assets, and the absence in 2020 of payments under our settlement agreement with
PDVSA.

Our short- and long-term operating cash flows are highly dependent upon prices forcrude oil, bitumen, natural
gas, LNG and NGLs. Prices and marginsin our industry have historically been volatile and are driven by
market conditions overwhich we have no control. Absent other mitigating factors, asthese prices and margins
fluctuate, we would expect a corresponding change in our operating cash flows.

The level of absolute production volumes, aswell as product and location mix, impacts our cash flows.
Production levels are impacted by such factorsas the volatile crude oil and natural gas price environment,
which may impact investment decisions; the effects of price changes on production sharingand variable -
royalty contracts; acquisition and disposition of fields; field production decline rates; new technologies;
operatingefficiencies; timing of startupsand majorturnarounds; politicalinstability; global pandemicsand
associated demand decreases; weather-related disruptions; and the addition of proved reservesthrough
exploratory successand theirtimely and cost-effective development. While we actively manage these factors,
production levels can cause variability in cash flows, although generally this variability hasnot beenas
significant asthat caused by commaodity prices.

To maintain orgrow our production volumes, we must continue to add to our proved reserve base. Due to
recent capitalreductions, our reserve replacement could be delayed thus limiting our ability to replace depleted
reserves.

Investing Activities

Proceeds from asset salesin the first nine months of 2020 were $1.3 billion compared with $2.9 billion in the
corresponding period of 2019. In the second quarterof 2020, we completed the divestiture of our Australia-
West assetsand operations. Based on an effective date of January 1,2019 and customary closingadjustments,
we received cash proceeds of $765 million in the second quarter with another $200 million payment due upon
finalinvestment decision of the proposed Barossa development project. Inthe first quarter of 2020, proceeds
from asset sales were $549 million, which included the sale of our Niobrara interests and WaddellRanch
interests in the Lower 48 forproceeds of $359 million and $184 million, respectively. See Note 4—Asset
Acquisitions and Dispositions in the Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements, foradditional information on
these transactions.

Proceeds from asset salesin the first nine months of 2019 were $2.9 billion, which consisted primarily of $2.2
billion related to the sale of two ConocoPhillips U.K. subsidiaries, $350 million from the sale of our30 percent
interest in the Greater Sunrise Fields and $77 million of contingent payments from Cenovus Energy.

Commercial Paper and Credit Facilities

We have a revolving credit facility totaling $6.0 billion, expiring in May 2023. Our revolving credit facility
may be used fordirect bank borrowings, the issuance of letters of credit totalingup to $500 million, or as
support forour commercial paper program. The revolving credit facility is broadly syndicated amongfinancial
institutions and does not contain any material adverse change provisions or any covenants requiring
maintenance of specified financialratios or credit ratings. The facility agreement containsa cross-default
provision relating to the failure to pay principalor interest on other debt obligations of $200 million or more
by ConocoPhillips, or any of its consolidated subsidiaries. The amount of the facility is not subject to
redetermination priorto its expiration date.

Credit facility borrowings may bear interest ata margin above rates offered by certain designated banks in the
London interbank market orata margin above the overnight federal funds rate or prime rates offered by
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certain designated banksin the U.S. The agreementcallsfor commitment feeson available, but unused,
amounts. The agreement also contains early termination rights if our current directors or their approved
successors cease to be a majority of the Board of Directors.

The revolving credit facility supportsthe ConocoPhillips Company $6.0 billion commercial paperprogram,
which is primarily a fundingsource for short-term working capitalneeds. Commercial paper maturities are
generally limited to 90 days. With $300 million of commercial paper outstandingand no direct borrowings or
letters of credit, we had $5.7 billion in available borrowing capacity underthe revolving credit facility at
September30,2020. We may considerissuing additional commercialpaperin the future to supplement our
cash position.

Despite recent volatility and price weakness forenergy issuers in the debt capital markets, we believe the
company continues to have accessto the markets based on the composition of ourbalance sheetand asset
portfolio.

In October 2020, S&P affirmed its “A” rating on oursenior long-term debt and revised its outlook to “stable”
from “negative,” Fitch affirmed itsrating of “A” with a “stable” outlook and Moody’s affirmed its rating of
“A3” with a “stable” outlook. We do not have any ratingstriggers on any of ourcorporate debt that would
cause an automatic default,and thereby impact ouraccessto liquidity, in the event of a downgrade of our
credit rating. 1f ourcredit ratingwere downgraded, it could increase the cost of corporate debtavailable to us
and potentially restrict our access to the commercial paperand debt capital markets. If ourcredit rating were
to deteriorate to a level prohibiting us from accessingthe commercial paperanddebt capital markets, we
would still be able to accessfundsunderour revolving credit facility.

Certain of our project-related contracts, commercial contracts and derivative instruments contain provisions
requiring us to post collateral. Many of these contractsand instruments permit usto post either cash or letters
of credit as collateral. At September30,2020and December31,2019, we had direct bank letters of credit of
$240 million and $277 million, respectively, which secured performance obligations related to various
purchase commitments incident to the ordinary conduct of business. In the event of credit ratings downgrades,
we may be required to post additionalletters of credit.

Shelf Registration
We have a universalshelf registration statementon file with the SEC underwhich we have the ability to issue
and sell an indeterminate amountof varioustypes of debt and equity securities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our normalongoing business operations and consistent with normal industry practice, we enter into
numerous agreementswith other parties to pursue business opportunities, which share costsand apportion
risks amongthe partiesasgoverned by the agreements.

For information about guarantees, see Note 11—Guarantees, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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Guarantor Summarized Financial Information

We have various cross guaranteesamong ConocoPhillips, ConocoPhillips Company and Burlington Resources
LLC, with respect to publicly held debt securities. ConocoPhillips Company is 100 percent owned by
ConocoPhillips. Burlington Resources LLC is 100 percent owned by ConocoPhillips Company.
ConocoPhillips and/or ConocoPhillips Company have fully and unconditionally guaranteedthe payment
obligations of Burlington Resources LLC, with respect to its publicly held debt securities. Similarly,
ConocoPhillips hasfully and unconditionally guaranteed the payment obligations of ConocoPhillips Company
with respectto its publicly held debt securities. Inaddition, ConocoPhillips Company has fully and
unconditionally guaranteed the payment obligations of ConocoPhillips with respectto its publicly held debt
securities. All guaranteesare jointand several.

In March of 2020, the SEC adopted amendments to simplify the financialdisclosure requirements for
guarantorsand issuers of guaranteed securities registered under Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X. Based on our
evaluation of ourexisting guarantee relationships, we qualify for the transition to alternative disclosures. We
have elected early voluntary compliance with the final amendments beginningin the third qua rterof 2020.
Accordingly, condensed consolidatinginformation by guarantorand issuer of guaranteed securitieswill no
longer be reported, and alternative disclosures of summarized financial information for the consolidated
Obligor Group is presented. The following tables present summarized financialinformation forthe Obligor
Group, asdefined below:

e The Obligor Group will reflect guarantorsand issuers of guaranteed securities consisting of
ConocoPhillips, ConocoPhillips Company and Burlington Resources LLC.

e Consolidatingadjustments forelimination of investments in and transactions between the collective
guarantorsand issuers of guaranteed securities are reflected in the balances of the summarized
financialinformation.

¢ Non-Obligated Subsidiaries are excluded from this presentation. Transactionsand balances reflecting
activity between the Obligors and Non-Obligated Subsidiaries are presented below:

Summarized Income Statement Data
Millions of Dollars
Nine Months Ended
September 30,2020

Revenuesand Other Income $ 5,690

Income (loss) before income taxes (2,018)
Net income (loss) (1,929)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ConocoPhillips (1,929)

Summarized Balance Sheet Data
Millions of Dollars

September 30 December31

2020 2019
Current assets $ 7,890 10,829
Amountsdue from Non-Obligated Subsidiaries, current 473 732
Noncurrent assets 40,026 43,194
Amountsdue from Non-Obligated Subsidiaries, noncurrent 7,622 7,977
Current liabilities 3,247 3,813
Amountsdue to Non-Obligated Subsidiaries, current 1,361 1,836
Noncurrent liabilities 20,444 21,787
Amountsdue to Non-Obligated Subsidiaries, noncurrent 5,725 6,974
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Capital Requirements
For information about our capital expenditures and investments, see the “Capital Expenditures” section.

Our debt balance at September 30,2020, was $15,387 million, compared with $14,895 million at December
31, 2019. Maturities of debt for the remainderof 2020, and foreach of the years 2021 through 2024, are: $367
million, $281 million, $998 million, $256 million and $577 million, respectively.

On February 4, 2020, we announced a quarterly dividend of 42 cents per share. The dividend was paid on
March 2, 2020, to stockholders of record at the close of business on February 14, 2020. On April 30,2020, we
announced a quarterly dividend of 42 cents per share. The dividend was paid on June 1, 2020, to stockholders
of record atthe close of businesson May 11,2020. On July 8, 2020, we announced a quarterly dividend of 42
cents per share, payable September 1,2020, to stockholders of record at the close of business on July 20, 2020.
On October 9, 2020, we announced an increase to our quarterly dividend from 42 cents per share to 43 cents
per share. The dividend is payable on December1,2020 to shareholders of record as of October 19, 2020.

Inlate 2016, we initiated our current share repurchase program. As of September 30,2020, we had announced
a totalauthorization to repurchase $25 billion of ourcommon stock. As of December31, 2019, we had
repurchased $9.6 billion of shares. In the first quarter of 2020, we repurchased an additional $0.7 billion of
shares before suspending repurchases during the second and third quarters of 2020. On September 30,2020,
we announced our intent to resume share repurchases; however, we recently announced the pending
acquisition of Concho, and oursuspension of share repurchases until afterthe transaction closes.

Capital Expenditures

Millions of Dollars
Nine Months Ended

September 30

2020 2019
Alaska $ 882 1,207
Lower 48 1,398 2,613
Canada 593 315
Europe, Middle Eastand North Africa 410 537
Asia Pacific 280 322
Other International 66 1
Corporate and Other 28 46
Capitalexpenditures and investments $ 3,657 5,041

During the first nine monthsof 2020, capital expendituresand investments supported key exploration and
development programs, primarily:

o Development,appraisaland exploration activitiesin the Lower 48, including Eagle Ford, Permian
Unconventionaland Bakken.

e Appraisal, exploration and development activities in Alaska related to the Western North Slope;
developmentactivitiesin the Greater Kuparuk Area and the Greater Prudhoe Area.

o Developmentand exploration activitiesacrossassets in Norway.

e Appraisalactivities in the liquids-rich portion of the Montney in Canada and optimization of oil sands
development.

e Continued development in China, Malaysia, Australia and Indonesia.

e Leaseacquisitionand appraisalactivitiesin Argentina.
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In February 2020, we announced 2020 operating plan capital of $6.5 billion to $6.7 billion. Inresponse to the
oil market downturn earlier this year, we announced capital expenditure reductions totaling $2.3 billion. Full
year2020 operating plan capital is now expected to be $4.3 billion. This does not include approximately $0.5
billion of capitalforacquisitions completed duringthe year, of which $0.4 billion was forbolt-onacreage in
the liquids rich area of the Montney.

In August 2020, we completed the acquisition of additional Montney acreage in Canada for $382 million after
customary adjustments, plus the assumption of $31 million in financingobligationsassociated with partially
owned infrastructure. See Note 4—Asset Acquisitions and Dispositions, in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, foradditional information.

Contingencies

A numberof lawsuits involving a variety of claims arising in the ordinary course of business have been filed
against ConocoPhillips. We also may be required to remove or mitigate the effectson the environment of the
placement, storage, disposalorrelease of certain chemical, mineral and petroleum substancesat variousactive
and inactive sites. We regularly assess the need for accountingrecognition or disclosure of these
contingencies. Inthe case of all known contingencies (other than those related to income taxes), we accrue a
liability when the loss is probable and the amountisreasonably estimable. Ifa range of amountscanbe
reasonably estimated and no amount within the range is a betterestimate than any otheramount, then the
minimum of therange is accrued. We do not reduce these liabilities forpotentialinsurance or third-party
recoveries. We accrue receivablesfor insurance orother third-party recoverieswhen applicable. With respect
toincome-tax-related contingencies, we use a cumulative proba bility-weighted loss accrualin cases where
sustaining a tax position is less than certain.

Based on currently available information, we believe it is remote that future costs related to known contingent
liability exposureswill exceed currentaccrualsby anamount that would have a materialadverse impact on our
consolidated financialstatements. As we learn new facts concerning contingencies, we reassess our position
both with respect to accrued liabilities and other potentialexposures. Estimates particularly sensitive to future
changesinclude contingent liabilities recorded for environmental remediation, legaland tax matters.
Estimated future environmental remediation costs are subject to change due to such factorsasthe uncertain
magnitude of cleanup costs, the unknown time and extentof such remedialactions that maybe required, and
the determination of our liability in proportion to that of otherresponsible parties. Estimated future costs
related to legal and tax mattersare subject to change aseventsevolve and asadditionalinformation becomes
available duringthe administrative and litigation processes. For information on other contingencies, see

Note 12—Contingenciesand Commitments, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Legal and Tax Matters

We are subject to various lawsuits and claimsincluding but not limited to mattersinvolvingoil and gasroyalty
and severance tax payments, gas measurementand valuation methods, contract disputes, environmental
damages, climate change, personalinjury,and property damage. Our primary exposures forsuch matters
relate to alleged royalty and tax underpayments on certain federal, state and privately owned propertiesand
claims of alleged environmental contamination from historic operations. We will continue to defend ourselves
vigorously in these matters.

Our legal organization appliesits knowledge, experience and professional judgment to the specific
characteristics of our cases, employinga litigation management processto manage and monitor the legal
proceedings againstus. Our process facilitatesthe early evaluation and quantification of potentialexposuresin
individual cases. This processalso enablesusto track those casesthathave been scheduled fortrialand/or
mediation. Based on professionaljudgment and experience in using these litigation management toolsand
available information about current developmentsin all our cases, our legal organization regularly assessesthe
adequacy of currentaccruals and determines if adjustment of existingaccruals, or establishment of new
accruals, is required.
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Environmental

We are subject to the same numerous international, federal, state and localenvironmental laws and regulations
asothercompaniesinour industry. For a discussion of the most significant of these environmental laws and
regulations, including those with associated remediation obligations, see the “Environmental” section in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on pages 60-62 of
our 2019 AnnualReporton Form 10-K.

We occasionally receive requests forinformation or notices of potential liability from the EPA and state
environmentalagenciesalleging that we are a potentially responsible party underthe Federal Comp rehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) or an equivalent state statute. On
occasion, we also have been made a party to cost recovery litigation by those agencies or by private parties.
These requests, notices and lawsuits assert potential liability forremediation costsat varioussites that typically
are not owned by us, butallegedly contain waste attributable to our past operations. As of September 30,
2020, there were 15 sites around the U.S. in which we were identified asa potentially responsible party under
CERCLA and comparable state laws.

At September 30, 2020, ourbalance sheetincluded a totalenvironmentalaccrual of $177 million, compared
with $171 million at December31, 2019, forremediation activities in the U.S. and Canada. We expectto
incur a substantialamount of these expenditures within the next 30 years.

Notwithstandingany of the foregoing, and as with other companiesengaged in similar businesses,
environmental costsand liabilities are inherent concernsin our operationsand products,and there can be no
assurance that material costsand liabilities will notbe incurred. However, we currently do notexpectany
materialadverse effect upon ourresults of operations orfinancial position asa result of compliance with
currentenvironmentallaws and regulations.

Climate Change

Continuingpolitical and socialattention to the issue of global climate change hasresulted in a broad range of
proposed or promulgated state, nationaland international laws focusingon GHG reduction. These proposed or
promulgated lawsapply or could apply in countries where we have interestsor may have interestsin the future.
Laws in this field continue to evolve,and while it is not possible to accurately estimate eithera timetable for
implementation orour future compliance costs relatingto implementation, such laws, if enacted, could havea
materialimpacton ourresults of operationsand financial condition. Examples of legislation and precursors
for possible regulation thatdo or could affect our operationsinclude:

e The EPA’s and U.S. Department of Transportation’sjoint promulgation of a Final Rule on April 1,
2010, that triggered regulation of GHGs underthe Clean Air Act, may trigger more climate-based
claims fordamages,and may result in longer agency review time fordevelopment projects.

e New Mexico’s Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department has proposed natural gas waste
rules aspart of New Mexico’s statewide, enforceable regulatory framework to secure reductionsin oil
and gassector emissions and to prevent natural gas waste from new and existing sources.

For otherexamples of legislation or precursors for possible regulation and factorson which the ultimate impact
on our financial performance will depend, see the “Climate Change” section in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on pages 63—65 of our2019 AnnualReporton
Form 10-K.

We announced in October 2020 the adoption of a Paris-aligned climate risk framework as part of our continued
commitmentto ESGexcellence. This comprehensive climate risk strategy should enable usto sustainably
meet global energy demand while delivering competitive returns through the energy transition. We have seta
targetto reduce our gross operated (scope 1 and 2) emissions intensity by 35 to 45 percent from 2016 levels by
2030, with anambition to achieve net zero by 2050 for operated emissions. We are advocatingforreduction
of scope 3 end-use emissions intensity through our support fora U.S. carbon price. We have joined the World
Bank Flaring Initiative to work towards zero routine flaring of gas by 2030. We are committed to take ESG
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leadership to the nextlevel asthe first U.S.-based oil and gascompany to adopt a Paris-aligned climate risk
strategy.

In December2018, we became a Founding Member of the Climate Leadership Council (CLC), an international
policy institute founded in collaboration with business and environmental interests to develop a carbon
dividend plan. Participation in the CLC providesanotheropportunity forongoingdialogue about carbon
pricing and framingthe issues in alignment with our public policy principles. We also belong to and fund
Americans For Carbon Dividends, the education and advocacy branch of the CLC. Inour October2020 Paris
aligned-climate risk framework announcement, we reaffirmed ourcommitmentto the Climate Leadership
Council.

Beginning in 2017, cities, counties, governmentsand otherentities in several states in the U.S. have filed
lawsuits against oil and gas companies, including ConocoPhillips, seeking compensatory damagesand
equitable relief to abate alleged climate change impacts. Additionallawsuits with similar allegationsare
expected to be filed. The amounts claimed by plaintiffsare unspecified and the legaland factual issues
involved in these casesare unprecedented. ConocoPhillips believes these lawsuits are factually and legally
meritless and are an inappropriate vehicle to address the challenges associated with climate change and will
vigorously defend against such lawsuits.

Several Louisiana parishesand the State of Louisiana have filed 43 lawsuits under Louisiana’s State and Local
Coastal Resources Management Act (SLCRMA) against oil and gas companies, including ConocoPhillips,
seeking compensatory damages for contamination and erosion of the Louisiana coastline allegedly caused by
historical oil and gasoperations. ConocoPhillips entities are defendants in 22 of the lawsuits and will
vigorously defend againstthem. Because Plaintiffs’ SLCRMA theories are unprecedented, there is uncertainty
about these claims (both asto scope and damages) and any potential financialimpact on the company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE “SAFE HARBOR” PROVISIONS OF
THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

This reportincludes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements otherthan statements of
historical fact included or incorporated by reference in this report, including, without limitation, statements
regarding our future financial position, business strategy, budgets, projected revenues, projected costsand
plans, objectives of management for future operations, the anticipated benefits of the proposed transaction
between us and Concho, the anticipated impact of the proposed transaction on the combined company’s
business and future financialand operatingresults, the expected amount and the timing of synergies from the
proposed transaction, and the anticipated closing date forthe proposed transaction are forward-looking
statements. Examples of forward-lookingstatements contained in this report include our expected production
growth and outlook on the business environment generally, ourexpected capital budget and capital
expenditures, and discussions concerning future dividends. You can often identify ourforward-looking
statements by the words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “budget,” “continue,” “could,” “intend,” “may,”
“plan,” “potential,” “predict,” “seek,” “should,” “will,” “would,” “expect,” “objective,” “projection,”
“forecast,” “goal,” “guidance,” “outlook,” “effort,” “target” and similar expressions.
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We based the forward-looking statementson our current expectations, estimates and projections about
ourselves and the industries in which we operate in general. We caution you these statementsare not
guarantees of future performance asthey involve assumptions that, while made in good faith, may prove to be
incorrect, and involve risks and uncertainties we cannot predict. Inaddition, we based many of these forward -
looking statements on assumptionsabout future eventsthatmay prove to be inaccurate. Accordingly, our
actualoutcomesandresults may differmaterially from what we have expressed or forecast in the forward -
looking statements. Any differences could result from a variety of factors and uncertainties, including, but not
limited to, the following:

o The impactof public health crises, including pandemics (such as COVID-19) and epidemicsand any
related companyorgovernment policies or actions.

e Globalandregional changesin the demand, supply, prices, differentials or other market conditions
affectingoil and gas, including changes resulting from a public health crisis or from the imposition or
lifting of crude oil production quotas orotheractions that might be imposed by OPEC and other
producingcountries and the resulting company or third-party actions in response to such changes.

e Fluctuationsin crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas, LNG and NGLs prices, including a prolonged decline
in these prices relative to historical or future expected levels.

o The impactof significantdeclines in prices for crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas, LNG and NGLs, which
may resultin recognition of impairment chargeson ourlong-lived assets, leaseholdsand
nonconsolidated equity investments.

o Potentialfailures or delays in achievingexpected reserve or production levels from existing and future
oil and gasdevelopments, includingdue to operatinghazards, drilling risks and the inherent
uncertainties in predicting reserves and reservoir performance.

e Reductionsin reserves replacement rates, whetherasa result of the significant declines in commodity
prices or otherwise.

o Unsuccessfulexploratory drilling activities or the inability to obtain accessto exploratory acreage.

o Unexpected changesin costs or technicalrequirements for constructing, modifyingor operating E&P
facilities.

o Legislative and regulatory initiatives addressing environmental concerns, including initiatives
addressingthe impact of globalclimate change or furtherregulating hydraulic fracturing, methane
emissions, flaring or water disposal.

e Lackof,ordisruptions in, adequate and reliable transportation forour crude oil, bitumen, natural gas,
LNG and NGLs.

e Inability to timely obtain ormaintain permits, including those necessary for construction, drilling
and/ordevelopment, orinability to make capital expenditures required to maintain compliance with
any necessary permitsorapplicable laws or regulations.

o Failure to complete definitive agreements and feasibility studies for, and to complete constructio n of,
announced andfuture E&Pand LNG developmentin a timely manner (if atall) or on budget.

e Potentialdisruption or interruption of our operations due to accidents, extraordinary weatherevents,
civil unrest, political events, war, terrorism, cyberattacks, and information technology failures,
constraintsor disruptions.

e Changesin international monetary conditionsand foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.

e Changesin internationaltrade relationships, including the imposition of trade restrictions or tariffs
relating to crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas, LNG, NGLs and any materials orproducts (such as
aluminum and steel) used in the operation of ourbusiness.

e Substantialinvestmentin and development use of, competingoralternative energy sources, including
asaresult of existing or future environmental rules and regulations.

o Liability for remedialactions, including removaland reclamation obligations, under existing and
future environmental regulations and litigation.

o Significant operational orinvestment changesimposed by existing or future environmental statutes
and regulations, including internationalagreementsand national or regional legislation and regulatory
measuresto limit or reduce GHG emissions.
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o Liability resulting from litigation, including the potentialfor litigation related to the proposed
transaction, orour failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations.

e General domestic and internationaleconomic and political developments, includingarmed hostilities;
expropriation of assets; changes in governmental policies relating to crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas,
LNG and NGLs pricing, regulation or taxation; and other political, economic or diplomatic
developments.

e Volatility in the commodity futures markets.

e Changesin tax and otherlaws, regulations (including alternative energy mandates), or royalty rules
applicable to ourbusiness.

e Competition and consolidation in the oil and gas E&P industry.

o Any limitationson ouraccessto capitalorincrease in our cost of capital, including asa result of
illiquidity or uncertainty in domestic or internationalfinancial markets.

o Our inability to execute, or delaysin the completion, of any asset dispositions or acquisitions we elect
to pursue.

o Potentialfailure to obtain,or delaysin obtaining,any necessary regulatory approvals for pendingor
future asset dispositions or acquisitions, or that such approvals may require modification to the terms
of the transactions orthe operation of ourremaining business.

e Potentialdisruption of ouroperationsasa result of pending or future asset dispositions or acquisitions,
including the diversion of managementtime and attention.

o Our inability to deploy the net proceeds from any asset dispositionsthat are pendingor that we elect to
undertake in the future in the mannerand timeframe we currently anticipate, if atall.

e Our inability to liquidate the common stock issued to usby Cenovus Energy aspart of our sale of
certain assetsin western Canadaat prices we deem acceptable, oratall.

e The operationand financingof ourjoint ventures.

e The ability of ourcustomersand other contractual counterparties to satisfy their obligations to us,
including our ability to collect paymentswhen due from the government of Venezuela or PDVSA.

o Our inability to realize anticipated cost savingsand capital expenditure reductions.

e The inadequacy of storage capacity forourproducts, and ensuing curtailments, whethervoluntary or
involuntary, required to mitigate this physicalconstraint.

e Our ability to successfully integrate Concho’s business.

o Therisk thatthe expected benefitsand cost reductionsassociated with the proposed transaction may
not be fully achieved inatimely manner,oratall.

o Therisk thatwe or Concho will be unableto retain and hire key personnel.

e The risk associated with ourand Concho’s ability to obtain the approvals of ourrespective
stockholders required to consummate the proposedtransaction and the timing of the closing of the
proposed transaction, includingthe risk thatthe conditionsto the transaction are not satisfied on a
timely basisor atall or the failure of the transaction to close forany otherreason or to close on the
anticipated terms, includingthe anticipated tax treatment.

o Therisk thatany regulatory approval, consent orauthorization that may be required forthe proposed
transaction isnot obtained oris obtained subject to conditionsthat are not anticipated.

o Unanticipated difficulties orexpenditures relating to the transaction, the response of business partners
and retention asa result of the announcement and pendency of the transaction.

e Uncertainty asto the long-term value of our common stock.

e The diversion of management time on transaction-related matters.

o Therisk factorsgenerally described in Part Il—Item 1Ain this report, in Part |—Item 1Ain our 2019
AnnualReporton Form 10-K, in our Forms 8-K filed with the SEC on May 20,2020 and September
8, 2020, respectively, and any additional risks described in our other filings with the SEC.

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information about market risks for the nine monthsended September 30,2020, does not differ materially from
that discussed under Item 7Ain our 2019 AnnualReporton Form 10-K.
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Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure information required to be disclosed in
reports we file or submit underthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,asamended (the Act), is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms,and thatsuch
information isaccumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and principal
financialofficers,asappropriate, to allowtimely decisions regarding required disclosure. As of September 30,
2020, with the participation of ourmanagement, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (principal
executive officer)and our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer)
carried outan evaluation, pursuantto Rule 13a-15(b) of the Act, of ConocoPhillips’ disclosure controls and
procedures (asdefined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Act). Based uponthatevaluation, our Chairmanand Chief
Executive Officer and our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer concluded ourdisclosure
controls and procedures were operating effectively as of September 30, 2020.

There have been no changesin our internal controlover financialreporting, asdefined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the
Act, in the period covered by this report that have materially affected, orare reasonably likely to materially
affect, ourinternalcontrolover financial reporting.

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no new material legal proceedings or material developments with respect to matters previously
disclosed in Item 3 of our 2019 AnnualReport on Form 10-K.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Other than therisk factors set forth below, there have been no material changes to the risk factorsdisclosed in
our AnnualReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal yearended December31,2019.

Risks Related to the Business

Existing and future laws, regulationsand internal initiatives relating to global climate change, such as
limitationson GHG emissions, may impact or limit our business plans, result in significant expenditures,
promote alternative uses of energy or reduce demand for our products.

Continuingpolitical and socialattention to the issue of global climate change hasresulted in both existing and
pending internationalagreementsandnational, regional or local legislation and regulatory measuresto limit
GHG emissions, such as cap and trade regimes, carbon taxes, restrictive permitting, increased fuel efficiency
standardsand incentives ormandates forrenewable energy. Forexample, in December2015,the U.S. joined
the internationalcommunity at the 21st Conference of the Parties of the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change in Paris that prepared an agreement requiringmember countries to review and
representa progression in their intended GHG emission reduction goals every five yearsbeginning in 2020.
While the U.S. announcedits intention to withdraw from the Paris Agreement, there is no guara ntee that the
commitments made by the U.S. will not be implemented, in whole or in part, by U.S. stateand local
governmentsorby majorcorporations headquartered inthe U.S. Inaddition, ouroperationscontinue in
countriesaround the world which are party to,and have notannouncedan intent to withdrawfrom, the Paris
Agreement. The implementation of currentagreementsandregulatory measures, aswell asany future
agreements ormeasuresaddressing climate change and GHG emissions, may adversely impact the demand for
our products, impose taxes on our products or operations or require us to purchase emission credits or reduce
emission of GHGs from our operations. As a result, we may experience declines in commodity prices or incur
substantial capitalexpendituresand compliance, operating, maintenance and remediation costs, any of which
may have an adverse effect on ourbusiness and results of operations.
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Compliance with the various climate change related internalinitiatives described in the “Business Environment
and Executive Overview” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations may increase costs, require us to purchase emission credits, or limit or impact our
business plans, potentially resulting in the reduction to the economic end-of-field life of certain assetsand an
impairment of the associated netbookvalue.

Additionally, increasing attention to global climate change hasresulted in pressure upon shareholders,
financialinstitutionsand/or financial markets to modify theirrelationships with oil and gascompaniesand to
limit investmentsand/or fundingto such companies, which could increase our costs or otherwise adversely
affect ourbusinessand results of operations.

Furthermore, increasing attention to global climate change hasresulted in an increased likelihood of
governmentalinvestigationsand private litigation, which could increase our costs or otherwise adversely affect
our business. Beginning in 2017, cities, counties, governmentsand otherentities in several statesin the U.S.
have filed lawsuits against oil and gascompanies, including ConocoPhillips, seeking compensatory damages
and equitable relief to abate alleged climate change impacts. Additionallawsuits with similar allegationsare
expected to be filed. The amountsclaimed by plaintiffsare unspecified and the legaland factual issues
involved in these casesare unprecedented. ConocoPhillips believes these lawsuits are factually and legally
meritless and are an inappropriate vehicle to address the challenges associated with climate change and will
vigorously defend against such lawsuits. The ultimate outcome and impact to us cannotbe predicted with
certainty,and we could incur substantial legal costs associated with defendingthese and similar lawsuits in the
future.

In addition, although we design and operate ourbusiness operationsto accommodate expected climatic
conditions, to the extent there are significant changes in the earth’s climate, such asmore severe or frequent
weather conditions in the markets where we operate orthe areaswhere our assets reside, we could incur
increased expenses, our operations could be adversely impacted, and demand forour products could fall.

For more information on legislation or precursors for possible regulation relating to global climate change that
affect orcould affect ouroperations and a description of the company’s response, see the “Contingencies—
Climate Change” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

Our business has been, and will continue to be, affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

The COVID-19 outbreak andthe measures put in place to addressit have negatively impactedthe global
economy, disrupted globalsupply chains, reduced global demand foroil and gas, and created significant
volatility and disruption of financialand commodity markets. Public health officials have recommended or
mandated certain precautionsto mitigate the spread of COVID-19, including limiting non-essentialgatherings
of people, ceasingall non-essentialtraveland issuing “social or physicaldistancing” guidelines, “shelter-in-
place” orders and mandatory closures or reductions in capacity fornon-essential businesses. The full impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic remainsuncertain and will depend on the severity, location and duration of the
effectsand spread of the disease, the effectivenessand duration of actions taken by authorities to contain the
virus or treat its effect,and how quickly and to what extent economic conditionsimprove. According to the
National Bureau of Economic Research, asa result of the pandemic and its broad reach across the entire
economy, the U.S. entered a recession in early 2020.

We have already been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, for additionalinformation on howwe have been impactedand
the steps we have taken in response.

Our businessis likely to be furthernegatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. These impacts could
include butare not limited to:

e Continued reduced demand forourproductsasa result of reductionsin traveland commerce;
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e Disruptions in our supply chain due in partto scrutiny or embargoingof shipments from infected areas
or invocation of force majeure clauses in commercial contracts due to restrictions imposed as a result
of the global response to the pandemic;

o Failure of third partieson which we rely, including our suppliers, contract manufacturers, contractors,
jointventure partnersand external business partners, to meet their obligationsto the company, or
significant disruptionsin their ability to do so, which may be caused by their own financialor
operational difficulties or restrictions imposed in response to the disease outbreak;

o Reduced workforce productivity caused by, but not limited to, illness, travelrestrictions, quarantine,
or government mandates;

e Business interruptionsresulting from a portion of our workforce continuingto telecommute,aswell as
the implementation and maintenance of protections foremployees commuting forwork, such as
personnelscreenings and self-quarantines before oraftertravel; and

e Voluntary or involuntary curtailments to support oil prices or alleviate storage shortages forour
products.

Any of these factors, or other cascadingeffects of the COVID-19 pandemic thatare not currently foreseeable,
could materially increase our costs, negatively impact ourrevenuesand damage our financial condition, results
of operations, cash flowsand liquidity position. The pandemic continuesto progressand evolve,and the full
extentand duration of any such impacts cannot be predicted at thistime because of the sweeping impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on daily life around the world.

We have been negatively affected and are likely to continue to be negatively affected by the recent swift and
sharp drop in commodity prices.

The oil and gasbusiness is fundamentally a commodity business and prices for crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas,
NGLs and LNG can fluctuate widely dependingupon globalevents or conditionsthataffect supply and
demand. Recently,there hasbeen a precipitous decrease in demandforoil globally, largely caused by the
dramatic decrease in traveland commerce resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. See Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, for additionalinformation on
commodity pricesand howwe have beenimpacted. Thereis no assurance of when orif commaodity prices will
return to pre-COVID-19 levels. The speed and extent of any recovery remainsuncertain and issubjectto
variousrisks, including the duration, impactand actions taken to stem the proliferation of the COVID-19
pandemic, the extent to which those nations party to the OPEC plus production agreement decide to increase
production of crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas and NGLs and otherrisks described in this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q or in our AnnualReport on Form 10-K forthe fiscalyearended December31, 2019.

Even aftera recovery, our industry will continue to be exposed to the effects of changingcommodity prices
given the volatility in commodity price drivers and the worldwide political and economic environment
generally, as well as continued uncertainty caused by armed hostilities in various oil-producing regions around
the globe. Our revenues, operatingresults and future rate of growth are highly dependent on the prices we
receive for our crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas, NGLs and LNG. Many of the factors influencingthese prices
are beyond ourcontrol.

Lower crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas, NGL and LNG prices may have a materialadverse effect on our
revenues, earnings, cash flows and liquidity, and may also affect the amount of dividends we elect to declare
and pay onourcommon stock. Asa result of the oil market downturn earlier this year, we suspended our share
repurchase program. Lower prices may also limit the amount of reserves we can produce economically, thus
adversely affectingour proved reserves, reserve replacement ratio and acceleratingthe reduction in our
existing reserve levels aswe continue production from upstream fields. Prolonged lower crude oil prices may
affect certain decisions related to our operations, including decisions to reduce capital investments or decisions
to shut-in production.

Significant reductionsin crude oil, bitumen, naturalgas, NGLs and LNG prices could also require us to reduce
our capitalexpenditures, impairthe carrying value of ourassets or discontinue the classification of certain

62



assetsas proved reserves. Inthenine-month period of 2020, we recognized several impairments, which are
described in Note 8—Impairments. If the outlook forcommodity prices remains low relative to historic levels,
and aswe continue to optimize our investmentsand exercise capital flexibility, it is reasonably likely we will
incur future impairmentsto long-lived assetsused in operations, investments in nonconsolidated entities
accountedforunderthe equity method and unproved properties. If oil and gas prices persist at depressed
levels, our reserve estimates may decrease further, which could incrementally increase the rate used to
determine DD&A expense on our unit-of-production method properties. See Management’s Discussion and
Analysis for furtherexamination of DD&A rate impacts versus comparative periods. Although it is not
reasonably practicable to quantify the impact of any future impairments or estimated change to our unit-of-
production atthistime, our results of operations could be adversely affected asa result.

Risks Related to the Proposed Acquisition of Concho Resources Inc. (Concho)

Our ability to complete the acquisition of Concho is subject to various closing conditions, including
approval by our and Concho’s stockholders and regulatory clearance, which may impose conditions that
could adversely affect us or cause the acquisition notto be completed.

On October 18, 2020, we entered into a definitive agreement (the Merger Agreement) to acquire Concho, one
of the largest unconventional shale producersin the Permian Basin.

The Merger is subject to a number of conditionsto closing as specified in the Merger Agreement. These
closing conditionsinclude, amongothers, (1) the receipt of the required approvals from ConocoPhillips
stockholdersand Concho stockholders, (2) the expiration ortermination of the waiting period underthe Hart -
Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976,asamended (the HSR Act) and (3) the absence of any
governmentalorderor law that makes consummation of the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibited. No
assurance can be given that the required stockholderapprovals and regulatory clearance be obtainedorthat the
required conditionsto closing will be satisfied, and, if all required approvalsand regulatory clearance are
obtained and the required conditions are satisfied, no assurance can be given asto the terms, conditionsand
timing of such approvalsand clearance, including whetherany required conditions will materially adversely
affect the combined company followingthe acquisition. Any delay in completingthe Merger could cause the
combined company notto realize, or to be delayed in realizing, some or all of the benefitsthatwe and Concho
expectto achieve if the Merger is successfully completed within its expected time frame.

We can provide no assurance that these conditions will not result in the abandonment ordelay of the
acquisition. The occurrence of any of these eventsindividually or in combination could have a material
adverse effect on ourresults of operationsand the trading price of our common stock.

The termination of the Merger Agreement could negatively impact our business or result in our having to
pay a termination fee.

If the Merger is not completed forany reason, including asa result of a failure to obtain the required approvals
from our stockholders or Concho’s stockholders, our ongoing business may be adversely affected and, without
realizing any of the expected benefits of having completed the Merger, we would be subject to a number of
risks, including the following:

e we may experience negative reactions from the financial markets, including negative impactson our
stock price;

e Wwe may experience negative reactions from ourcommercialand vendor partnersand employees; and

o we will be required to pay our costs relating to the Merger, such asfinancialadvisory, legal, financing
andaccountingcostsand associated feesand expenses, whetherornotthe Merger is completed.

Additionally, if the Merger Agreement is terminated under certain circumstances, we may be required

to pay a termination fee of $450 million, including if the proposed Merger is terminated because our Board of
Directors haschanged its recommendation in respect of the stockholder proposalrelatingto the Merger. In
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addition, we may be required to reimburse Concho forits expensesin anamountequalto $142.5 million, if the
Merger Agreementis terminated because of a failure of our stockholdersto approve the stockholder proposal.

Whether or not the Merger is completed, the announcement and pendency of the Merger could cause
disruptionsin our business, which could have an adverse effect on our business and financial results.

Whetheror notthe Merger is completed, the announcement and pendency of the Merger could cause
disruptions in our business. Specifically:

e ourand Concho’scurrent and prospective employees will experience uncertainty about their future
roles with the combined company, which might adversely affect the two companies’ abilities to retain
key managersand otheremployees;

e uncertainty regardingthe completion of the Merger may cause ourand Concho’s commercialand
vendor partners orothers that dealwith us or Concho to delay ordefer certain business decisions or to
decide to seek to terminate, change or renegotiate their relationships with us or Concho, which could
negatively affect ourrespective revenues, earnings and cash flows;

o the Merger Agreement restricts us and oursubsidiaries from takingspecified actions during the
pendency of the Merger without Concho’s consent, which may prevent us from makingappropriate
changesto our business or organizational structure or prevent us from pursuing attractive business
opportunities or strategic transactions thatmay arise prior to the completion of the Merger; and

o theattention of ourand Concho’s management may be directed toward the completion of the Merger,
aswell asintegration planning, which could otherwise have been devoted to day-to-day operations or
to other opportunitiesthat may have been beneficial to our business.

We have and will continue to divert significant management resources in an effort to complete the Merger and
are subject to restrictions contained in the Merger Agreement on the conduct of ourbusiness. 1fthe Merger is
not completed, we will have incurred significant costs, including the diversion of management resources, for
which we will have received little or no benefit.

The market value of our common stock could decline if large amounts of our common stock are sold
following the Concho acquisition.

If the Merger is consummated, ConocoPhillips will issue sharesof ConocoPhillips common stock to former
Concho stockholders. Former Concho stockholders may decide not to hold the shares of ConocoPhillips
common stock that they will receive in the Merger, and ConocoPhillips stockholders may decide to reduce
their investment in ConocoPhillips asa result of the changes to ConocoPhillips’ investment profile as a result
of the Merger. Other Concho stockholders, such asfundswith limitationson their permitted holdings of stock
in individual issuers, may be required to sell the sharesof ConocoPhillips common stock that they receive in
the Merger. Such sales of ConocoPhillips common stock could have the effect of depressingthe market price
for ConocoPhillips common stock.

Combining our business with Concho’s may be more difficult, costly or time-consuming than expected and
the combined company may fail to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger, which may adversely affect
the combined company’s business results and negatively affect the value of the combined company’s
common stock.

The success of the Merger will depend on,amongotherthings, the ability of the two companiesto combine
their businesses in a mannerthat facilitates growth opportunities and realizes expected cost savings. The
combined company may encounter difficulties in integrating our and Concho’sbusinesses and realizing the
anticipated benefits of the Merger. The combined company must achieve the anticipated improvement in free
cash flow generation and returnsand achieve the planned cost savings without adversely affecting current
revenues or compromisingthe disciplined investment philosophy for future growth. If the combined company
is notable to successfully achieve these objectives, the anticipated benefits of the Merger may not be realized
fully, or atall, or may take longerto realize than expected.
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The Merger involvesthe combination of two companies which currently operate, and untilthe completion of
the Merger will continueto operate,asindependent public companies. There canbe no assurancesthatour
respective businesses can be integrated successfully. Itis possible thatthe integration process could result in
the loss of key employees from both companies; the loss of commercialand vendor partners; the disruption of
our, Concho’s or both companies’ ongoing businesses; inconsistencies in standards, controls, proceduresand
policies; unexpected integration issues; higher than expected integration costsand anoverall post-completion
integration process that takes longerthan originally anticipated. The combined company will be required to
devote management attention and resources to integrating its business practicesand operations,and priortothe
Merger, management attention and resources will be required to plan forsuch integration.

An inability to realize the full extent of the anticipated benefits of the Merger and the othertransactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement, as well asany delaysencountered in the integration process, could
have an adverse effect upon the revenues, level of expensesand operating results of the combined company,
which may adversely affect the value of the common stock of the combined company.

Inaddition, the actualintegration may result in additionaland unforeseen expenses, and the anticipated
benefits of the integration plan may notbe realized. There are a large number of processes, policies,
procedures, operationsand technologies and systemsthat must be integrated in connection with the Merger
and the integration of Concho’s business. Although we expectthatthe elimination of duplicative costs,
strategic benefits,and additionalincome, aswell asthe realization of otherefficiencies related to the
integration of the business, may offset incremental transaction and Merger-related costsovertime, any net
benefitmay not be achieved inthe neartermoratall. Ifwe and Conchoarenotable toadequately address
integration challenges, we may be unable to successfully integrate operations or realize the anticipated benefits
of the integration of the two companies.

Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Millions of Dollars

Total Numberof Approximate Dollar

SharesPurchasedas  Value of Shares That

Total Number of Part of Publicly May Yet Be

Shares Average Price Announced Plansor Purchased Underthe

Period Purchased™* Paid per Share Programs Plans or Programs
July 1-31, 2020 - $ - - $ 14,649
August 1-31, 2020 - - - 14,649
September1-30,2020 - - - 14,649

- $ - -

*There were no repurchases of common stock from company employees in connection with the company's broad-based employee incentive plans.

Inlate 2016, we initiated our current share repurchase program. As of September 30,2020, we had announced
a totalauthorization to repurchase $25 billion of ourcommon stock. As of December31, 2019, we had
repurchased $9.6 billion of shares. In the first quarter of 2020, we repurchased an additional $726 million of
shares. On April 16,2020, asa response to the oil market downturn, we announced we were suspendingour
share repurchase program,and on September 30,2020, we announced our intent to resume share repurchases
of $1 billion in the fourth quarter; however, on October 19, 2020 we announced that we had entered into a
definitive agreement to acquire Concho and would suspend share repurchases until after the transaction closes.
The transaction is expected to close in the first quarterof 2021. Acquisitions forthe share repurchase program
are made at management’s discretion, at prevailing prices, subject to market conditions and other factors.
Exceptaslimited by applicable legal requirements, repurchases may be increased, decreased ordiscontinued at
any time without prior notice. Shares of stock repurchased underthe planare held astreasury shares. See the
“Our ability to declare and pay dividendsand repurchase shares is subject to certain considerations” section in
Risk Factorson pages21-22 of our2019 AnnualReport on Form 10-K.
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Item 6. EXHIBITS

21

10.1*

10.2*

22*

31.1*

31.2*

32*

101.INS*

101.SCH*

101.CAL*

101.LAB*

101.PRE*

101.DEF*

104*

* Filed herewith.

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated asof October18,2020,among ConocoPhillips, Falcon
Merger Sub Corp.and Concho Resources Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Current Report of ConocoPhillips on Form 8-K filed on October 19, 2020; File No. 001-32395).

Successor Trustee Agreement of the Deferred Compensation Trust Agreement for Non -
Employee Directors of ConocoPhillips, dated July 31, 2020.

First Amendmentto the Successor Trustee Agreement of the Deferred Compensation Trust
Agreement for Non-Employee Directors of ConocoPhillips, dated August 4, 2020.

Subsidiary Guarantors of Guaranteed Securities.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantto Rule 13a-14(a) underthe Securities
Exchange Actof 1934,

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantto Rule 13a-14(a) underthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934,

Certifications pursuantto 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
Inline XBRL Instance Document.

Inline XBRL Schema Document.

Inline XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.
Inline XBRL Labels Linkbase Document.

Inline XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.
Inline XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

CoverPage Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).
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SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report

to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CONOCOPHILLIPS

/sl Catherine A.Brooks

Catherine A. Brooks
Vice President and Controller
(Chief Accountingand Duly Authorized Officer)

November 3, 2020
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